CITY OF SKY VALLEY
ORGANIZATIONAL & REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
TUESDAY JANUARY 14, 2025 AT 10:00 AM
3608 HWY. 246 (CITY HALL) AND VIA TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM)
SKY VALLEY, GA 30537

AGENDA
1. Call to Order
2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING
3. Swearing in of Newly Elected Officials
4. Nomination and Selection of 2025 Council President
5. Set 2025 Regular Council Meeting Dates
6. Set Qualifying Fees for 2025 General Election
REGULAR MEETING
7. Approval of Minutes
October 25, 2024 - Council Work Session/Planning Retreat
November 4, 2024 - Public Hearing Held at 10:00 a.m.
November 4, 2024 - Public Hearing Held at 5:00 p.m.
November 12, 2024 - Public Hearing
November 12, 2024 - Special Called Council Meeting
8. Adoption of Agenda
9. City Manager Remarks
10. Department Remarks
11. Committee Reports

NEW BUSINESS

12. Ratification of the 2025 SKy Valley/Scaly Mountain Volunteer Fire and Rescue
Agreement

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or }Jarriaj:ate in this
meeting, or who have questimw regan{ing the accessiﬁiﬁty of the meeting or the faci(ities are required' to call 706-746-2204

ﬁrmpt@ to allow the Ciry to make reasonable accommodations fm’ those persons.



13. Consider approval of 2025 committee appointments

14. Ratification of Resolution to adopt the 2024 Rabun County Joint Comprehensive
Plan update

15. Consider approval of the FY2025 Sky Valley Marketing Committee Budget

16. Consider adoption of the amendment to the City of Sky Valley Zoning Regulations
as they apply to solar energy systems - 274 Reading

17. Consider approval to purchase one (1) excavator with enclosed cab, in an amount
not to exceed $75,000 (to be paid out of TSPLOST funds)

OTHER BUSINESS

18. Public Forum and General Comments

e ANY PERSON WITH BUSINESS BEFORE THE COUNCIL, NOT SCHEDULED ON THE

AGENDA AS A PUBLIC HEARING, MAY SPEAK TO THE COUNCIL FOR A MAXIMUM OF
FIVE MINUTES

e THE SPEAKER MUST IDENTIFY BY NAME/ADDRESS BEFORE SPEAKING
e NO FORMAL ACTION CAN BE TAKEN

19. Executive Session

20. Adjournment

The following is the link to join the meeting:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87875595033

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this
meeting, or who have quesrions regaro(ing the accessiﬁifity of the meeting or the faciﬁties are requirecf to call 706-746-2204
}JTOM})I‘[‘V to allow the City to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.



OATH OF OFFICE

I, Tony Allred, do solemnly affirm that I will truly perform the duties of Council Member of the
City of Sky Valley and that I will support and defend the Charter thereof as well as the Constitution
and Laws of the State of Georgia and of the United States of America.

Tony Allred

Sworn to and subscribed
before me this 14th day of
January 2025.

Notary Public



OATH OF OFFICE

I, Jim Curtis, do solemnly affirm that I will truly perform the duties of Council Member of the City
of Sky Valley and that I will support and defend the Charter thereof as well as the Constitution and
Laws of the State of Georgia and of the United States of America.

Jim Curtis

Sworn to and subscribed
before me this 14th day of
January 2025.

Notary Public



Regular Council Meetings

Tuesday, January 14'" — Organizational & Regular
Tuesday, February 18t
Tuesday, March 18"
Tuesday, April 15
Tuesday, May 20t
Tuesday, June 17
Tuesday, July 15t
Tuesday, August 19"
Tuesday, September 16™
Tuesday, October 21
Tuesday, November 18"
Tuesday, December 16"

All meetings are at 10:00 AM
Proposed Meeting Dates




MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor and Council
FROM: Karen Fleming
DATE: January 14, 2025

SUBJECT: 2025 Qualifying Fees

Pursuant to 0.C.G.A. § 21-2-132(c)(3) & SB 199, the qualifying fee for the offices of four Council
Member seats to be filled in the November 4, 2025, City of Sky Valley General Election, is set at
$15.00. Such fees shall be paid to the Rabun County Board of Elections and Registrations by
any candidate seeking to have his or her name placed on the November 4, 2025, General
Election ballot. A pauper’s affidavit may be filed in lieu of paying the qualifying fee.

Qualifying for the offices listed above will begin at 9:00 A.M. on Monday, August 18t and will
end at 4:30 P.M. on Friday, August 22", There being the Mayor and three Council Members
whose terms shall expire in 2025, qualifying will be to fill these four seats. Should less than four
candidates qualify for the office of Council Member, qualifying will reopen on Monday, August
25t at 9:00 A.M. and end at 5:00 P.M. on Tuesday, August 26™.



City of Sky Valley
Council Work Session/Planning Retreat
October 25, 2024

Minutes

The City of Sky Valley held a Council Work Session/Planning Retreat on Friday, October
25, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. at the Georgia Mountains Regional Commission office located at

1310 West Ridge Road, Gainesville, Georgia 30501.

CALLTO ORDER
Mayor Hollie Steil called the meeting to order at 10:08 a.m. and thanked those present

for attending.

Members Present Staff Present

Hollie Steil, Mayor Jason Streetman, City Manager

Bill Oliver, Council President Sherron Van Camp, Communications
Tony Allred, Council Member Jerry Shope, Public Works Supervisor
Bruce Turner, Council Member Cody English, Water Coordinator

Dan McAfee, Council Member

Others Present
Rick Barron, EMI; Jerry Hood, EMI; and Gina Kessler, GMRC Executive Assistant,

preparer of minutes

ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Mayor Steil asked for a motion to accept the agenda. Dan McAfee made the motion and

Bill Oliver seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously.

DISCUSSION ITEMS
City Manager Jason Streetman also thanked all those present for attending and thanked

GMRC for the use of their facilities.

2024 Budget
Before discussing the proposed FY25 Draft Budget, Mr. Streetman went over the FY24

Budget’s expenses and revenue as of the time of the meeting.

The FY24 Year to Date Expenditures from the General Fund totaled $1,402,076. The
following contributed to the expenditures:

e Gen. Gov. $391,587
e Pub. Saf. $609,123
e Roads $309,502



e Bld. Inp./Ec. Dev. $ 91,864
The FY24 Year to Date Revenue to the General Fund totaled $1,732,753. The following

contributed to the revenue:

e Prop. Tax $983,026
e Interest Rev. $ 38,002
e (rants $121,005
e Permit/Lic./Fees $192,821
e Hotel/Motel $ 60,995
e Court Fines $ 37,995
e Misc./Sale of Assets $299,520

Mayor Steil asked what the revenue was in the previous year’s budget under the
Hotel/Motel line item. Mr. Streetman stated that it was about the same and explained
that the increase to the 8% tax on Hotel/Motel started late in the year, so there should be
an increase in the 2025 Hotel/Motel revenue.

Councilman Oliver asked about what assets were sold. Mr. Streetman explained that most
of the revenue was from city-owned lots that were sold, and surplus items sold made up

the rest.

Mr. Streetman provided a breakdown for the remainder of the year and predicts that the
city will end the year with around $1.6 million in total expenditures and $1.75 million in
total revenue. The breakdown did show a negative balance in the trash line item. Mr.
Streetman explained that the city did have some unexpected expenditures in that area,
and that they are required to at least break even in the trash department. Mr. Streetman
also explained that the breakdown provided was based on trends throughout the year,
and those numbers were subject to change.

FY25 Proposed Draft Budget

The Council received the draft budget prior to the meeting for review. City Manager
Streetman discussed the proposed budget with the Council.

The first topic of discussion was the proposed FY2025 five-year tax levy and millage rate.
Mr. Streetman explained that while the millage rate has been reduced, property values
have gone up. Therefore, the proposed Mil Rate for the FY25 budget is 10.999, resulting
in a tax increase of 14.47%. The rollbacks that have been applied over the last couple of
years are really not sustainable for the city’s budget. Mr. Streetman told the Council that
while the increase is small, the city is required to have three public meetings on the topic.
The increase will bring an additional $162,314 in revenue. Revenue from the tax increase
is proposed to be spent on the following items that will result in an increase of $165,556
in expenditures:

e Personnel — 5% COLA for employees’ salary to remain competitive

e Worker’s Comp, Property, and Liability insurance for 2025 are to increase by 15%
e SVSMVFR increase due to value of mill increase at 1.5 mills

2. (CWS/PR)



Capital outlay lease purchase of police chief car payment
Police Department budget increase

Admin/City Hall budget increase

Building Inspections/Code Enforcement budget increase

Property taxes will make up about 73% of the FY25 budget, other revenue will come from
sources such as grants, permits, Hotel/Motel Tax, etc. Total revenue expected for the

FY25 budget year is $1,600,303.
During review of the proposed FY25 Budget the following questions were asked:

Q. Why a decrease in the Short-Term Rental revenue.

A. The rentals that are registered have decreased from 120 to 90. The reduction may have
stemmed from the new ordinance requirements. The city will continue to utilize Granicus
to search for rentals that are not registered with the city.

Q. What is the total revenue expected for items for resale?
A. $10,000 is expected on the expenditure side, but $15,000 in revenue is expected.

Q. Why does the proposed budget have $2000 for Legislative Travel and $1500 for

Legislative Training and Education?
A. The funds are there should there be a necessity for a Council member to travel; $400

per Council member and in the case an educational or training opportunity presents itself
that would be beneficial for a Council member; $300 per Council member.

Q. What is the Official/Administrative Services line item?
A. Collection agency for unpaid taxes.

Q. Under Building/Grounds line item what is Technical Services?
A. Cameras at the compactor, Post Office, City Hall, and Public Works buildings. Alarm

systems and hardware.

Q. Does the budget for the Police Department account for it being fully staffed?
A. Yes, the budget is based on a staff of five.

Q. What percentage of the budget is designated for the Police Department?
A. About 33%

Q. Why the variation in Communications under Roads from FY24 to FY25?
A. The need to purchase new phones/radios for staff as the current ones are several years

old and starting to develop problems.
Q. Does the marketing fund include a timeshare contribution?

A. Yes, but if they decide not to contribute, it will be removed from the final budget. If
they do not contribute there is a surplus left from the FY24 budget that could be pulled.

3. (CWS/PR)

9



Q. Will the $755,00 budgeted in the TSPLOST line item be enough to cover all road paving

and other expenditures needed in 2025?
A. City Manager Streetman explained that a lot of paving was able to be completed in
2024 because of TSPLOST. There is still close to $500,000 of TSPOST funds in the bank,

and another $500,000 is expected in 2025.

With TSPLOST funds the priority paving for 2025 is:

e Evergreen Road Widening $ 85,000%
e East Sugarbush $110,104
e Driver $151,145
e Saddleback $243,329
e Lost Valley $ 14,652
Total $604,230

#$138,850 of the funding mentioned above is planned from the Local Maintenance &
Improvement Grant(LMIG), leaving the total of TSPLOST funds to be spent on paving

totaling $565,380.

The city will apply for Emergency and Extraordinary Expense (EEE) funding to use
towards the widening of Evergreen Road as well.

The remaining TSPLOST funds will go towards general supplies and materials as well as
vehicle/equipment purchases.

Mayor Hollie Steil thanked Jason Streetman for all his hard work on the draft budget.
MT. Streetman was happy to announce that every year the city has been able to add a little
to its reserve fund, and that in his time with the city, this is the first year that the General
Fund has not dipped below $1 million this late in the budget year.

Infrastructure Improvements, Expansions, and Upgrades

Mayor Steil asked if there was still a plan to build a pole barn behind the compost building.
Mr. Streetman advised that it has been fenced in and they are waiting to get on the
contractor’s schedule. There will be two pole barns that run around $7,000 each that will
be able to store the Kubota’s and other equipment such as the skid steer, excavator,
mowers etc. Moving the equipment will make access more convenient. Jerry Shope
mentioned that there are also diesel and gas fuel tanks at that location.

Jerry Shope stated that his crew had replaced or put in a lot of the culverts that were
discussed last year, and that they are working well to prevent standing water. Mayor Steil
asked about the section of Labelle Road where water still seems to go over the road. Mr.
Shope advised her that there is a cold-water spring there causing that and there is not a

way to prevent that.

4. (CWS/PR)

10



Mr. Shope discussed that at some point some of the roads will have to be taken up or
milled, and that they are trying to choose the ones now that can be leveled or overlayed.
The cost of milling a road would require about double the budget. Mr. Streetman and
Jerry Shope stated the city is looking into putting the roads on a paving rotation because
12 — 15 years after paving they will require repair again. Mr. Shope has looked into having
a seal coat put on some of the roads. To have the road sealed will be less expensive, but
also create a mess as they cannot be driven on for at least 24 hours after sealing and if the
weather changes during that time it creates problems.

Dan McAfee asked if there were any water lines or other anticipated problems that need
to be investigated before any of the proposed roads are paved. Cody English mentioned
that there is a two-inch galvanized line that they are working to determine where it goes.
It will have to be located before any paving on Driver Lane. The line may or may not
provide water up to Bald Mountain.

The mayor thanked Mr. Shope for all the hard work he and his crew put into cleaning up
after Hurricane Helene. Mr. Shope acknowledged that there are still some culverts that
need repair, but that the culverts that had been repaired saved the roads as Sky Valley got
an estimated 22 inches of rain during that storm.

Cody English reported that the Water Department now has a nine-man crew that is
working great together. With the help of one of Rick Barron’s guys (EMI) the rebuild of
the City PVR (Pressure Reducing Valve) went much better than expected. The city already
has seven rebuild kits on hand but will need to purchase at least eight more. Per the City’s
water engineer, rebuilding these PRV’s should help with the water pressure issues.

The High Tide Telemetry has been installed on the Schonberg Tank and is running off a
solar panel. The next step would be Sky High Tank, Winding Ridge, and wells four, seven
and six. Mayor Steil asked how much they would cost and if it was in the budget. The cost
would run around $10,000 each, but Mr. English believes that this can be done over the
next three years. The order he feels they should be done in is Winding Ridge first, then
Sky High, followed by the wells.

Mr. English mentioned that anything coming off SR 246 would get water from the
Winding Ridge Tank, and the city may want to consider drilling another well there within
the next five years. Five years ago, the average monthly pumping at Winding Ridge was
50 — 70 thousand gallons a month, but now they do not get turned off and have doubled
that. The increase is due to more residents staying year-round.

Well number three is in need of maintenance, and will need new piping installed, and is
pitted pretty bad. The best thing to do is going to be to replace it. The estimated cost for
that would be $10,000 to $15,000. If replacement is needed in 2025 it can be done step
by step, but by 2026 it will have to be replaced.

The well-house needs to be painted again and has rotting wood that will need to be
replaced.

5. (CWS/PR)

11



Due to growth, more money will be spent on chemicals and maintenance. The city can
handle what is there now, but with growth will need to consider a new water tank.

The city can handle what it has now, but with anticipated growth Mr. English would like
to see a 100,000-gallon tank that could be used as a reserve in case of a leak. The cost of
that would be around $300,000 to $400,000. Discussion was had about adding a larger
tank or expanding the capacity of the existing tank. Mr. English noted that expanding
capacity would depend on what the tank was originally designed to hold.

The mayor asked if the new sewer system would add to the city’s water usage. Mr. Jerry
Hood explained that it would not, as drinking water would not be used.

Rick Barron from EMI is waiting for the written report from EPD (Environmental
Protection Division) regarding the drilling of a new well to be located near the post office,
but EPD did give him a verbal go ahead. Once the report is received, EMI will put it out
to bid. They will need to determine what site prep will need to be done and where to put
a small settling pond for water run off when drilling. Mr. English advised that there is a
drain ditch near the site that may be able to be used as a catch pond.

The mayor also asked if there were old wells that had been covered and abandoned within
the city. Mr. Barron advised that the only wells that have been capped or no longer
functional.

Mr. Barron anticipates the cost for the well, well house, and chemicals will run close to a
quarter of a million dollars, but it is a necessity.

City Manager Jason Streetman suggested that to help pay for the well, along with the

possibility of raising water rates, the city would consider raising tap fees. EMI can help
determine connection fees to help pay for the well.

Septic to Sewer Program

Mr. Jerry Hood, EMI, provided the Council with an information packet that included the
Sewer Feasibility Study with the Service Area Aerial Map, Water Usage Records (2015),
plan layout with setbacks, a map of the proposed Wastewater Treatment Facility site, and
site requirements. The packet also contained information for discussion that included a
feasibility study — MGD Plant/preliminary cost estimate as of August 4, 2024, feasibility
analysis — MGD Plant/ potential funding mechanism, Water and Sewer System Projected
Operations Budget, water usage for existing customers in the proposed sewer service area,
and confirmation of anticipated flow rates and potential rates.

EMI also provided the Council with the following task list and action items:

6. (CWS/PR)

12



e Re-analyze the existing high density customer base and determine current and
accurate flow (and project revenue) from these potential customers

e Obtain the best information possible regarding future development plans,
timetables and projected water and sewer usage. Information needed from Merrill
and Harvey to project anticipated sewer revenue generation

e Stake out and survey ideal site for the future wastewater treatment facility and

negotiate for the acquisition of the site, including discharge location

Stake and survey the sites for the small pumping facilities and generators

Walk and survey the low-pressure force mains layouts — confirm ownership

Make site visit to the City of Dillard WRF facility

Initiate the Antidegradation analysis

Update the project cost estimate

Initiate the Environmental Information document

Initiate the Design Development Report.

Complete concept plans and refine program for consideration of RFP for

Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) delivery method

Discussion of existing metering — multifamily etc.

e Update the 2025 — 2028 projected operating budget and standard budgeting,
versus GEFA Cash Flow Modeling

e Discussion of potential sewer user rates — comparative study

e Thoughts on Sewer Connection fees — before and after initial construction —
discussion on connection fees; tap fees; system capacity fees, what these really
mean

e Existing Septic Systems - who owns what? Future use?

e Development of public education
o Education materials or plans that will be used to educate the residents about

how to maintain the new sewer collection system
e Legislative authority for facilitating participation

Mr. Hood explained to the Council that the two most important things that need to be
done next are securing the Wastewater Treatment Facility Site and updating the O & M

projections to structure rates.

Councilman Bill Oliver stated that he spoke to Harrison Merrill, and he is fine with the
proposed area downstream from the waterfall but is concerned about the visibility from
the road. There is another option that puts it down stream some more, but the site may
not be feasible as it would require significant grading. Mr. Merrill is willing to work with
the city either way. Other residents have also expressed concern with visibility of the
treatment facility from the road.

City Manager Jason Streetman stated if the site is moved down stream more, the proposed
location is entirely Harrison Merrill's property. Mr. Streetman has not been able to
connect with the property owner for the original site plan, but Merrill’s property is more
level.

7. (CWS/PR)

13



Mayor Steil mentioned that Mr. Merrill would be in agreeance to put a city right-of-way
road that connects to Public Works to prevent them from having to go through the city to
get to the sewer plant.

The road would only be accessible to city employees for the time being.

Mayor Steil met with Rawson Haverty the previous week, and he had brought in a builder
to discuss what they wanted to see. Mr. Haverty told the mayor that they are working on
a Master Plan and is hoping to be able to have a meeting in November with the Council to
present the plan. Mayor Steil said that any plan submitted would ultimately have to be
presented to the public prior to approval

Mr. Hood advised the city to get something in writing from Mr. Merrill. Once that is
confirmed they can look at how it would fit into the site and how everything would look
at the waterfall. This information would be part of a public meeting.

EMI explained that the system would be a low-pressure pump system with grinder pump
stations that would pick up clusters of buildings and then pump that to the wastewater
plant. The stations make very low humming noise when they come on and do not produce
any odor. For maintenance purposes of the grinders, it is recommended that the city has
some spare units on hand that can be dropped in while the other is being repaired. In
many cases it is more economical to replace the grinder than to repair it.

Jerry Hood stated that EMI will get with the city

The total project cost is right at $6 million. Once the project is initiated it will be
operational in two to three years.

Additional funding options were discussed. Some of the SPLOST funds if passed may be
able to be used depending on what other projects are assigned. Those funds would come
over a five-year period and probably total $100,000 per year at the most.

A second GEFA loan may be an option depending on the city’s rate study and cash flow.
There is also the possibility of an Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) Grant. If the
city is interested in that option, Georgia Mountains Regional Commission will write that
grant free of charge.

In conclusion the city’s next steps will be:
e Coordinate with EMI to schedule a trip to visit Dillard’s facility
e City Hall will work with EMI to calibrate an updated O & M. To get correct numbers
on how much water is being used.

EMTI’s next steps are:
e Antidegradation analysis
e Environmental Information document
o When this document is completed, the city can start advertising for public
meetings that may be able to occur in January to February 2025.

8. (CWS/PR)

14



ADJOURNMENT

Before adjourning, Councilman Tony Allred stated that he would like to see the city create
a clear and detailed Emergency Response Plan or training on how to best serve the
residents of Sky Valley in case of an emergency. All were in agreement that a plan is
important to have and it was suggested to run it through the Mayoral Advisement
Committee.

With no further business to discuss, Mayor Steil asked for a motion to adjourn. Tony
Allred made the motion and Bruce Turner seconded the motion. The motion passed
unanimously, and the meeting was adjourned at 1:32 p.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

Attest:

Karen Fleming, City Clerk

9.(CWS/PR) ;s



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2024, AT 10:00 AM. AT 3608 HWY 246 & VIA
TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM) SKY VALLEY, GA 30537.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Steil, council members: Allred, Oliver, McAfee, Turner, and
Curtis

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Streetman, Deputy Clerk Murphy, and Communication
Specialist Van Camp

Mayor Steil called the meeting to order at 10:00AM and stated that the purpose of this public
hearing is to receive public comments on the proposed 2025 budget as well as the proposed
millage rate for the 2024 Ad Valorem taxes. The budget and millage rate are on the agenda to be
adopted at a Special Called Council Meeting on November 12, 2024, at 10:00 am. Mayor Steil
stated that the city charter required the city to adopt a balanced budget every year and City
Manager Streetman has presented a proposed general fund budget that represents a true millage
rate roll back from the current 11.5742 to the proposed 9.609 and would result in a zero-tax
increase. In addition, the proposed budget would allow the city to provide cost of living
allowances for city employees and did not touch any of the city’s reserves to balance.

This proposed budget has been modified from the original proposal that originally showed a tax
increase. Mayor Steil stated that city manager Streetman had a power point presentation but
before he would present, called for comments from the council.

Council member Oliver stated he had when through the budget line by line and thanked the
mayor and city manager for their hard work in drafting a balanced budget that included a true
rollback, particularly with ever rising costs.

Council member McAfee made mention that this would be the third year in a row that the city
has been able to roll back the millage rate for a zero-tax increase.

Council member Allred stated the importance of a roll back when possible.

Council member Curtis said the council is committed to keep Sky Valley wonderful and accepts
the challenges to preserve what makes Sky Valley special and thanked City Manager Streetman
for being able to manage the city’s funds to try and keep expenditures as low as possible.
Furthermore, he stated that rollbacks year over year are probably not sustainable.

Mayor Steil asked City manager Streetman to o into his presentation for the General Fund
Budget, Enterprise Fund/Combined Utilities, Marketing and TSPLOST Funds and allowed time
for comments/questions afterwards.

16



GENERAL FUND
Revenue: City manager Streetman stated that with the proposed millage rate rollback, the overall
budget with other sources of revenue would total $1.533,910 an increase over the current budget

of $1.499.999 and that property taxes would make up approximately 67% of the budget.

Furthermore, other funding sources include grants, permits, fines, fees, hotel/motel revenue and
penalties and interest.

Expenditures: City manager Streetman provided a breakdown of how funds would be spent with
police making up 34%, fire 10%, city hall 25% roads, building & grounds 6%, roads 16% and

misc. 9% respectively.
Upon power point presentation conclusion, the floor was opened to the public.

Carey Beasley- 539 Overlook asked what fell under misc. expenses and City manager Streetman
items such as courts, elections, executive & legislative (mayor & council), cultural / recreational
ex. fireworks, hay bale trail, Independence Day and fall fests, code enf./ building inspections and
economic development.

Steve Mason- 38 Pleasant Mtn. asked what made up the capital lease purchases for the current
year and city manager Streetman stated the police chief vehicle and part of the costs for an F450.
Mason also asked about the pressure relief valves and City manager Streetman stated there were
17 within the city and the city was rebuilding them one at a time and hoped to have this done
before the end of this calendar year. Mason stated that he felt the city should put more focus on
the water system instead of the road system within the city.

Barbara Kobacker-407 Pleasant Min asked City Manager Streetman whether or not the water
loans have been paid off and Streetman stated they had not and the city was a little over half way
paying off the loans that were for a period of 20 years. '

Robert Smalley- online via zoom- 103 Buttermilk Circle asked should the city consider raising
taxes to fund water system improvements. Council member McAfee stated that it would cost
millions of dollars to do a complete overhaul of the water system.

Enterprise Fund- Water
Revenue: City manager Streetman discussed the water fund and total anticipated revenues of

$535,400 comprised of water fees, tap fees, Servline fees, and penalties/interest.
Expenditures: City manager Streetman stated an anticipated amount of $524,251 comprised of
salaries/benefits, operations, debt service (interest on GEFA loan) and annual capital lease

payment on F450.
Steve Mason 38 Pleasant Mtn asked was there money set aside to deal with leaks and city
manager Streetman stated we have funded the repairs out of the operations budget as they

happen.

Enterprise Fund- Trash

17



Revenue: City manager Streetman stated that trash revenue comes from service fees and 1s
anticipated to be around $218,500. _
Expenditures: City manager Streetman stated that expenditure are made up of personal and
operational cost with an estimation of $217,972.

There was no comments regarding the water or trash budget.

Marketing-

City manager Streetman stated that Mr. Gordon Brand who is the marketing committee chairman
is working on a FY25 budget with plans to present to the council soon for approval. The city has
set aside $5k in the general fund budget to go towards and match the property owners association
and country club at $5,000 each too.

TSPLOST

Revenue: City manager stated that TSPLOST funds continue to come in every month and based
on what we have in the bank now and what we are anticipated to receive, the proposed budget
could actually be higher. The budget is set based on what we hope to realistically do in a given
budget year. The proposed revenue for FY2025 is $755,380.

Expenditures: City manager stated that anticipated costs will go towards resurfacing roads,
supplies and equipment and capital equipment to include an F450 truck and a Kubota Excavator.

Barbara Kobacker-407 Pleasant Mtn asked how the city determines what roads get resurfaced.
City manager Streetman stated we look at the volume of traffic, the number of homes on the road
and the overall condition of the road. City manager Streetman that Pleasant Mtn. Road is planned
to be resurfaced in the near future.

There was no other comments. Seeing none, Mayor Steil stated that the next public hearing
would be today at 5PM here at city hall and adjourned the meeting at 10:56AM.

Respectfully submitted:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

Attest:

Summer Murphy, Deputy Clerk

18



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 4,
2024, AT 5:00 PM. AT 3608 HWY 246 & VIA TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM) SKY VALLEY, GA 30537.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Steil, council members: Allred, McAfee, Turner, and Curtis

MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilor Cliver

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Streetman, Deputy Clerk Murphy, and Communication Specialist Van Camp

Mayor Steil called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM and stated that the purpose of this public hearing is to receive
public comments on the proposed 2025 budget as well as the proposed millage rate for the 2024 Ad Valorem taxes.
The budget and millage rate are on the agenda to be adopted at a Special Called Council Meeting on November 12,
2024, at 10:00 am. Mayor Steil stated that the city charter required the city to adopt a balanced budget every year
and City Manager Streetman has presented a proposed general fund budget that represents a true millage rate roll
back from the current 11.5742 to the proposed 9.609 and would result in a zero-tax increase. In addition, the
proposed budget would allow the city to provide cost of living allowances for city employees and did not touch any of

the city's reserves to balance.
This proposed budget has been modified from the original proposal that originally showed a tax increase. Mayor Stell
stated that city manager Streetman had a power point presentation but before he would present, called for comments

from the council. No comments made.

Mayor Steil asked City manager Streetman to go into his presentation for the General Fund Budget, Enterprise
Fund/Combined Utilities, Marketing and TSPLOST Funds and allowed time for comments/questions.

GENERAL FUND
Revenue: City manager Streetman stated that with the proposed millage rate rollback, the overall budget with other
sources of revenue would total $1,533,910 an increase over the current budget of $1,499,999 and that property taxes

would make up approximately 67% of the budget.

Furthermore, other funding sources include grants, permits, fines, fees, hotel/motel revenue and penalties and
interest.

Expenditures: City manager Streetman provided a breakdown of how funds would be spent with police making up
34%, fire 10%, city hall 25% roads, building & grounds 6%, roads 16% and misc. 9% respectively.
Upon power point presentation conclusion, the floor was opened to the public.

Tim Darrah- 642 Ridgepole asked to slow down and go over the fire department expenditure and who set the
amount? City Manager Streetman responded that this is what historically they have received year after year. They
receive 1.5 mills of net digest. It has been an agreement of the request and what has been budgeted over the years.

As net digests go up so does their aliocations.

Mayor Steil asks for any other questions or concerns over what has been discussed so far and the charter requests
to state your name and address before stating your questions please.

Chris Pence- 667 Driver Lane asked what the salary increases were for the city employees. City Manager Streetman
responded that it was around 5% and that we currently have 20 employees. The 5% was around $30,000 to remain
competitive and to take care of the hard-working employees who at times have had to work 24 hours straight with

water

Mayor Steil added we don't want to sacrifice our wonderful city services, which is a challenge, but this proposed
budget allows us to do this without touching our reserve fund which is a great thing. The city auditor each year

19



compliments the city as being one of the few cities with a decent reserve fund which keeps our credit rating at a good
stance.

Briggs Stahl- 81 Bayberry Lane inquired about a missing page on the revenue budget as well as that the original
budget sent out, we had 50,000 more in state grants. City Manager Streetman responded that every year doing the
budget you trend things out. For this year's budget we received an extra $46,000 and supplemental LMIG money.
Confident we will see somewhere near that again so that is where the $50,000 came from. Mayor Steil added that it
comes from the Department of Transportation which you apply and as long as it is legible and on time you get the

grant.

Karla Stahl- 81 Bayberry Lane inquired about the employee benefits. City Manager Streetman stated that the city
provides a reimbursement plan for health insurance, and we also offer supplemental vision and dental as well as a

program through GMA for 401k.
Mayor Steil asked if there were any other questions in person or online, there were none.

Enterprise Fund- Water

Revenue: City manager Streetman discussed the water fund and total anticipated revenues of $535,400 comprised of
water fees, tap fees, Servline fees, and penalties/interest.

Expenditures: City manager Streetman stated an anticipated amount of $524,251 comprised of salaries/benefits,
operations, debt service (interest on GEFA loan) and annual capital lease payment on F450.

Mayor Steil asked if the council or people attending had any other questions or comments. There were none.

Karla Stahl- 81 Bayberry asked where the water cycies came from. City manager Streetman responded that we use
ground water from 2 systems. Winding Ridge which has 2 wells and the city core which has 5 wells. We can withdraw
300,000 gallons a day if needed. On average we pump 150,000 to 170,000 gallons a day.

Joe Webb- 145 Big Bear Trail asked if the city has protection from cyber hacking in the utility system. City Manager
Streetman responded that our cloud-based system has a muti step system of authentication which we have
measures for that. The water system itself is not digital. We have meters and sensors on the tanks themselves so
they will go off and alert our Public Works Director and Coordinator. Mayor Steil added that our water specialist tests

our water everyday to make sure it is ok.

Chris Pence- 667 Driver Lane asked if the water employees are included in the 20 employees mentioned prior. City
Manager Streetman responded that they are part of the 20 employees. We have 5 employees on the water side.

Council member Curtis added that we have a new well site but didn't see anything on the expenditure side and
inquiring where the money will come from for that. City Manager Streetman answered that it will probably have to
come out of the savings and SPLOST but at the time of the budget we didn't have any figures yet. The new well will
pe called well 9 and will be near the post office. Mayor Steil added that we had a geophysicist come lock at the sites
and he stated that it will take around a year just to get the permit for it.

Karla Stahl- 81 Bayberry Lane asked how much our reserves are and what are they for? City Manager Streetman
stated in general fund we have about 10 months of reserves that equate to around a million dollars. On water side we
probably have about $700,000 and trash about $250,000. Considering building another tank in a few years, which will

be about $300,000.

Chris Pence- 667 Driver Lane asked how we invest our reserves. City Manager Streetman answered that we have it
in a checking account that accrues interest of about $4,000 a month. We reconcile the accounts every month.

Enterprise Fund- Trash

Revenue: City manager Streetman stated that trash revenue comes from service fees and is anticipated to be around
$218,500.

Expenditure: City manager Streetman stated that expenditure is made up of personal and operational costs with an
estimation of $217,972.

Tim Darrah- 642 Ridgepole asked if we got any revenue from sale of recyclables? City Manager Streetman answered
that they waive our fees but that is the most we get.

Marketing-
City manager Streetman stated that Mr. Gordon Brand who is the marketing committee chairman is working on a

FY25 budget with plans to present to the council soon for approval. The city has set aside %5k in the general fund
budget to go towards and match the property owners association and country club at $5,000 each too.

20



Karla Stahl- 81 Bayberry Lane asked if we have any quantifiable results or benefits that the city is receiving because
of marketing efforts? City Manager Streetman added that through marketing efforts more people are visiting and
moving here but no metrics have been kept. Mayor Steil added about the video made for WSBTV which may bring
more people up here! Council member Curtis added that another indicator was with the tax digest that since covid hit
Airbnb and property values have gone up. You may not see a pay off for years and years. City Manager Streetman
added that the STR's have decreased because people come visit and stay in them then decide it is a great place to

live and buy them out.

TSPLOST
Revenue: City manager stated that TSPLOST funds continue to come in every month and based on what we have in

the bank now and what we are anticipated to receive, the proposed budget could be higher. The budget is set based
on what we hope to realistically do in a given budget year. The proposed revenue for FY2025 is $755,380.
Expenditures: City manager stated that anticipated costs will go towards resurfacing roads, supplies and equipment
and capital equipment to include an F450 truck and a Kubota Excavator. Discussing recent leaks Mayor Steil
requested City Manager Streetman to discuss pressure reducing valves. There are 17 pits throughout the city which
have not been touched in 49 years. We are in the process of rebuilding these and told by the engineer that it is
necessary to rebuild these to help pressure that reaches homes. We encourage residents to put pressure reducing

valves to help prevent leaks.

Dee Van Camp- 99 Alex Mtn Dr asked if we are mapping the pipes that have been replaced for future use? City
Manager Streetman responded that we do keep track, and it is about 95% as accurate as we can get. We continue to

try to be proactive.

Steve Bischoff- 246 Bayberry Lane asked where are we at with the lodge? Mayor Steil responded that it is Harrison
Merril property, and they are coming up with a plan to present to our citizens. Sadly, the church had to move out of it

because of Hurricane Helene damage.

Kristin Whatley- 372 Saddleback Circle (zoom caller) asked if council and citizens would benefit from comparative
budget information and percentages over a three-year period? City Manager Streetman responded that we do trend
out the budget information every year and draft the budget based on what the minimum needs are. We do have those
numbers and can provide them as well as they are available online.

Chris Pence- 667 Driver Lane asked do we have more assets to sell. Will we be able to beat last years 2024 budget?
Is it hard to tell right now? City Manager Streetman responded. We do have assets but those have been identified as
possible future use. An example is a lot that could be suitable for a water tank. We also use gov deals to sell.vehicles.
It is hard to tell but we try to be conservative. We hope that our revenues continue to outpace the expenditure.

Mayor Steil stated the TSPLOST has been wonderfull Last time we received 1.9 million from TSPLOST. Hope all will
vote for SPLOST during the election.

Joe Webb- 145 Big Bear Trail asked how the revenue for TSPLOST comes from visitors. City Manager Streetman
responded that it is a 1% sales tax and when visitors come and buy meals, gas, or anything in the county goes to
TSPLOST. This has allowed us to do great things with the roads that otherwise would have come from the general
fund. Council member Curtis added that many local governments do not have many ways to fund their operations.
Over 5 years we will get around $600,000 if it passes. If it does pass it will not go into effect until the current SPLOST

expires.

Briggs Stahl- 81 Bayberry Lane asked what did we cut from the original budget to get to the current budget? City
Manager Streetman answered that the roads were some deferrals and defer some TSPLOST expenditures. On the
police side there was some expenditures with technology that we cut. Cut a little overtime in some departments and
training funding. Every effort was made to not cut salaries and benefits. Council member Curtis added that it is so
amazing that for three years in a row we have not had to increase property taxes, but this will not last forever with
inflation the way it is. Eventually our taxes will have to go up.

Joe Webb- 145 Big Bear Trail asked what the bottom line is for the coming year for the budget? City Manager
Streetman said that by reducing the millage rate to offset the net digest increase what you paid last year in taxes is
what you should pay this year. Mr. Webb also asked who sels the rate for the homestead exemption. Mr. Streetman
stated that Sky Valley is unique, and everyone gets a flat $25,000 off but it has to be your primary residence. There
are around 114 full-time residents that take advantage of the homestead exemption

There were no other comments. Seeing none, Mayor Steil stated that the next pubfic hearing would be Tuesday
November 12" at 9:00 AM here at city hall and adjourned the meeting at 6:12 PM.

21



Respectfully submitted:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

Attest:

Summer Murphy, Deputy Clerk

22



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON A TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12,
2024, AT 9:00 A.M. AT 3608 HWY. 246 AND VIA TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM) SKY VALLEY,

GEORGIA

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Steil, Councilors Oliver, Turner, and Curtis
MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilor Allred

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Streetman, City Clerk Fleming, and Communication
Specialist Van Camp

Mayor Steil called the hearing to order at 9:00 a.m. and City Manager Streetman read the
following introduction:

The purpose of this public hearing is to receive public comments on the proposed 2025 budget
as well as the proposed millage rate for the 2024 Ad Valorem taxes. No additional public
hearings are scheduled. The budget and millage rate are on the agenda to be adopted at the
Special Called Council Meeting at 10:00 a.m.

General Fund Budget, Enterprise Fund/Combined Utilities, Marketing and T-SPLOST Funds,
were discussed and time allowed for comments.

General Fund Budget

City Manager Streetman stated that the 2025 proposed General Fund Budget is $1,533,910. The
proposed rollback millage rate is 9.609 with a zero-tax increase. He stated that the millage rate has
been rollbacked six mills since 2021. A presentation was given showing the following: Key Revenue
Sources — Property Taxes $1,025,836, Franchise Taxes $62,500, Permits $166,050, Grants $88,524,
Hotel/Motel at 8% $72,000, Misc. Fines/Interest $119,000. How our Revenue is Diversified: Property
Taxes 67%, Int/Misc/Penalties/Fines 8%, Grants/Hotel-Motel 10%, Franchise Fee 4%, and License
Permits 11%. General Fund Expenditures: Admin $385,043, Bldg./Grounds $86,750, Police $521,223,
Fire $160,137, and Roads $247,411, Miscellaneous $133,346. Key points to consider — By doing a true
rollback of the millage rate, there will be no increase in property taxes. Funding sources that allow this
to happen include Hotel/motel taxes, grants, and T-SPLOST. With T-SPLOST, General Fund expenditures
that would normally come out of the roads budget for maintenance are deferred to the T-5SPLOST and
reducing the burden of funding road expenditures out of the General Fund. With this proposed
balanced budget, the following increases in expenditures are noted: 15% increase in Workers Comp./
Property and Liability Insurance and 22% increase in payments to Sky Valley/Scaly Mtn. Volunteer Fire
and Resue for fire protection.

Mayor Steil thanked City Manager Streetman for all of his hard work on the proposed budget, the City’s
Infrastructure, and future improvements.

Councilor Curtis commented that possibly the City should negotiate with the Fire Department
concerning how many mills of the tax digest, that they receive. The City has to do cuthacks so the Fire

23



Department should share in these cutbacks. Councilor Oliver stated that the fire department just had a
public meeting to address how the money is spent. Their budget contains training which will help to
keep our ISO rating low, but we need to get more detailed information. Mayor Steil stated that they

provide a wonderful service.

John Lewis, 78 View Lane, asked a couple of questions: 1. Water supply issues? 2. How is the widening
of Evergreen Road going to be funded? City Manager Streetman told him that his questions will be
answered as he continues with his presentation.

Enterprise Fund/Combined Utilities
Anticipated water revenue, $535,400 with the expenditures at §524,251, leaving $11,149 in

surplus.

Anticipated sanitation revenue, $218,500 with the expenditures at $217,972, leaving $528 in
surplus.

City Manager Streetman stated that the city has 17 pressure reducing valves that will be re-built
throughout the city at a cost of $3,000 each, and the water lines are typically expanded with
better piping during a water break event. Also, the water and trash rates will stay the same.

No public comments were made.

Marketing
City Manager Streetman stated that historically the Marketing Committee has received $5,000

each from the Country Club, City, and Property Owners Association. Timeshares of Sky Valley
may join this year at another $5,000 so the anticipated budget for 2025 is proposed at $20,000.
The 2025 anticipated expenditures would include, professional services, communications, ad-
vertising, and general supplies and materials.

No public comments were made.

T-SPLOST Fund

City Manager Streetman stated that as of date the approximate amount received from T-
SPLOST funding is $900,000 with the anticipated amount to be received for 2025, $755,380.
The breakdown of the anticipated revenue is $10,000 in interest and $745,380 from T-SPLOST.
Expenditures would include $565,380 Road repair/maintenance, $75,000 general supplies and
materials, $115,000 Capital Outlay (New F450 & Kubota Excavator). Totaling $755,380.

Mr. Lewis asked about the traffic that is using Evergreen. His thought was that construction
crews were using the road as a shortcut to Highlands which City Manager Streetman told him
that he didn’t think so as it would not be a shortcut and as Sky Valley has a lot of construction

going on as well.
Evergreen Way will be widened in 2025 by 18 ft. and even 19 ft. in places. The roads that will
be resurfaced include Driver, E. Sugarbush, Saddleback, Stillwater, Lost Valley.

2. (PH)
24



No other comments were made.

Councilor McAfee made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilor Curtis,
unanimously approved.

The meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

Attest:

Karen Fleming, City Clerk

3. (PH)

25



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING HELD ON NOVEMBER 12,
2024 A TUESDAY AT 10:00 A.M., 3608 HIGHWAY 246 (CITY HALL) & VIA TELECONFERENCE (ZOOM)

SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Steil, Councilors McAfee, Turner, Oliver, and Curtis

MEMBERS ABSENT: Councilor Alired

STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Streetman, City Clerk Fleming, Communication Specialist
Van Camp, Interim Police Chief Edwards, and Lt. Baumes

1. Callto Order
Mayor Steil called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

2. Invocation/Pledge of Allegiance
Councilor Oliver led the invocation/pledge of aliegiance.

3. Approval of Minutes
October 15, 2024 — Regular Council Meeting
Councilor Oliver made a motion to approve the minutes as written, seconded by Councilor

McAfee, unanimously approved.

4. Adoption of Agenda
Mayor Steil suggested amending the agenda. Item #5 “Consider approval to amend the Sky
Valley Zoning Ordinance (Solar) — 2" reading and adoption” to be postponed as the ordinance
still needs tweaking and add an item #7, “Introduction of new Police Chief Tim Wallis”.
Councilor Curtis made a motion to amend the agenda with the two changes, seconded by

Councilor Turner, unanimously approved.

NEW BUSINESS

5. Consider Resolution to approve the 2024 Millage Rate
Mayor Steil stated that three public hearings have been held which have been properly ad-
vertised. She asked City Manager Streetman to read the Resolution and it reads as follows: “A
resolution to set and declare the tax millage rate in the City of Sky Valley, GA for calendar year
2024. Whereas, the governing body of the City of Sky Valley is the Mayor and Council; and
Whereas it is necessary to set and declare for the 2024 tax millage rate based on the 2024 digest
and 5-year history of levy, which will be used to levy property taxes for the City of Sky Valley,
GA; Now, therefore, be it resolved by the governing body of the City of Sky Valley, GA that for
calendar year 2024 the gross millage rate is to be set at 9.609 mills.”

Councilor Oliver made a motion to approve the Resolution setting the millage rate at 9.609 mills,
seconded by Councilor McAfee, unanimously approved.



Consider Resolution to approve the FY2025 Budget

Mayor Steil thanked City Manager Streetman for his preparation of the proposed budget and
asked him to read the Resolution. The Resolution reads as follows: “Aresolution to provide for
the adoption of a budget containing estimates of the proposed revenues and expenditures and
to provide for the levy of taxes for expenditures for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2025.”
The proposed budget is $1,533,910.

Councilor McAfee made a motion to approve the Resolution for the FY2025 Budget, seconded
by Councilor Curtis, unanimously approved.

Introduction of new Police Chief, Tim Wallis

Mayor Steil stated that a hiring committee had been established and the job position had been
advertised for a month. The City had received fifteen applications and four candidates had been
chosen. Interviews and background checks were conducted, and Mr. Wallis had been un-
animously agreed upon and he accepted the offer. She asked Chief Watlis if he would like to say
a2 few words. He stated that it was an honor to have been hired. Him and his wife, Avie, love
the area and have been looking for the last couple of years for a way to move to the mountains.
He retired from the City of Lawrenceville in 2022 after four years of service. He has been in law
enforcement for a total of 32 years. He gave additional information concerning his family and
stated that they will be looking for property close by as he currently is living in Gwinnett County.

Mayor and Council welcomed him.

. Adjournment

As there being no further business to come before Mayor and Council, Councilor McAfee made
a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Councilor Curtis, unanimously approved.

The meeting adjourned at 10:16 a.m.

Respectfully submitted:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

Attest:

Karen Fleming, City Clerk

2. (SCCM)

27



Sky Valley-Scaly Mountain Volunteer Fire and Rescue Department, Incorporated

SKY VALLEY-SCALY MOUNTAIN VF&R
(Volunteer Fire and Rescue)
Post Office Box 278
Scaly Mountain, NC 28775

City of Sky Valley Mayer Hollie Steil i _
City Council Members Date: -2l -7 0T\

Friends:

Annual Funding Request

We request funding for CY-FY 2025 at the rate of 1 .5 mils of the City's 2024 Net Digest Value. This
milage rate is the same as we are currently receiving for 2024.

1. Following is a summary of services we provide per the terms of our Annual Contract with the City,
and the annual Lease Agreement for our use of the Sky Valley Fire Station. The complete and detailed
list of services and obligations is contained in those two documents which are renewed in January of each

year.

A. Fire suppression (structural, wildlands and vehicle), Medical First Responder services, Rescue
(lost persons, structure collapse, vehicle extrication and recovery), and assistance with traffic
control associated with vehicle accidents, fires, etc.

B. Beginning in 2019, fire hydrant flushing, flow testing, labeling, marking and assistance to the
City with other fire hydrant maintenance needs.

C. Maintenance of the Sky Valley Fire Station and payment of electricity and telephone bills. The
City provides water, and Rabun County pay for heating propane.

2. We currently have 21 active members and 2 Juniors: 9 from Sky Valley, 5 from our Georgia district
outside of Sky Valley, and 7 from Scaly Mountain.

3. We hold an ISO 5 rating for the City of Sky Valley. This results in annual savings on home owners
insurance premiums that exceeds the amount that home owners pay for our services through City funding.

We had our beginnings in Sky Valley and have served the residents of the City for over 40 years,
beginning before there was a City. In return, the residents have been very supportive of our effolrts. We
look forward to many more years of this collaboration. |

Sincerely, \
_ \ / ( .
_ i \ 1 ~ T \
2,;-&-— d'/ \\—//‘ (/ \,l
Paul Wheeler Ken Sigler
Chairman of the Board Fire Chief

Serving Sky Valiey, GA and Vicinity, and Scaly Mountain, NC ~ 24/7

28



AGREEMENT

State of Georgia
County of Rabun

Whereas, the CITY OF SKY VALLEY, hereinafter referred to as First Party, is a municipal
corporation in said State and County, chartered by the General Assembly of Georgia, and

Whereas, the SKY VALLEY-SCALY MOUNTAIN VOLUNTEER FIRE & RESCUE
DEPARTMENT, INC., hereinafter referred to as Second Party, is a corporation with an office and
place of business located in said County, and

Whereas, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement for certain services to be performed
for the benefit of First Party by Second Party.

Now, therefore, and in consideration of the mutual promises herein set forth and the
payment by First Party to Second Party of the sum herein specified, it is mutually agreed as
follows:

l. TERM OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall be effective when signed by both parties and shall continue in full force
and effect until December 31, 2025. It may be renewed by the parties thereafter from year to year by
a letter of intent to renew signed by both parties and attached hereto which shall specify any
modifications hereof.

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

The Second Party shall provide firefighting and rescue services in the same manner and to the
same extent as it has in previous years for dwelling houses and other buildings and surrounding and
adjacent areas located within the City of Sky Valley.

HI. AFFILIATION

Second Party is an Independent Contractor as to First Party and is not an agent or employee.
The time and manner of performance shall be within the sole and exclusive discretion of Second
Party taking into consideration the nature of the duties and obligations of Second Party as a fire and
rescue service. The First Party shall have no control over the same, but the Second Party shall
cooperate with the Sky Valley Police Department and City Government and its employees in carrying
out its duties and obligations.

IV. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES

The First Party will financially contribute to Second Party for its services in the first, second,
third and fourth quarters of the year 2024 in the amount of $40,034.00 per quarter for a total of
$160,136.00 for the year. This constitutes one- and one-half mils of the Net Digest Value of real
property within the City (at 40% valuation) for calendar year/tax year 2024. The First Party shall mail

29



payment by check to the Second Party at Post Office Box 278; Scaly Mountain, NC 28775, in a timely
manner each quarter to be received by Second Party not later than the last day of the second month
of each quarter, i.e. 28 February; 31 May; 31 August and 30 November.

V. SPECIAL CONDITIONS
The following Special Conditions shall apply:

(A) This Agreement is made in Rabun County, Georgia, and the law of Georgia shall govern
the legal construction and interpretation of its provisions and the rights and remedies of the parties.

(B) The provisions hereof constitute the entire Agreement of the Parties and no oral
agreement, promises or inducements made by either Party shall bind the other unless reduced to
writing and incorporated herein.

(C) This Agreement may not be modified except in writing executed by both parties.

WITNESS THE HAND AND SEAL OF EACH PARTY THE DATE SET OPPOSITE EACH
SIGNATURE.

\i "ﬂ.‘? ny

The City of Sky Valley, Georgia, First Party : 0

!’\ a“‘gw‘fl c‘ A u}
o 2%

' . S
By: bildbie QAN "“ ' :

" Hollie Steil, Mayor

pate: __Nocewbrer 19, 2054 Attested: %Ww %wwvn'

%ar Zvi F{-@i«-q Hﬂ i City"Qlerk

(Affix City Seal)

Sky Valley-Scaly Mountain Volunteer Fire & Rescue Department, Inc., Second Party

Paul Wheeler
Chairman of the Board

- I,J'; (

1.1 7 J K/’“ﬂ L.( i L Y
Date: Jifreg e Attested: \ ) (f)\
o Kenneth Siglef ~ * Chief

(Affix Corporate Seat)
30



2025 Sky Valley Committees

MAYORAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

e Bill Oliver — Chairman
Boliver.councilor@amail.com

e Tony Allred
tallredsvec@gmail.com

e Lise Rozier

Lise2229@yahoo.com

o David Spears
dmspears@msn.com

e Tim McClelland

tim@bullseyegroup.net

SPECIAL PROJ C MITTEE
e Bruce Turner — Chairman

bturnersvce mail.com

Ji h
isrhodestn@gmail.com

Rick Rahn
rdster406@hotmail.com

e Grace Guess

quess grace@hotmail.com

Ken Sigler
grumpygoatsharpening@yahoo.com
chief@svsmvir.org

31



e Gordon Brand
gibrand@msn.com

LANDSCAPIN MMITTEE

e Cheryl Beckert — Chairperson
cinsurance7@verizon.net

e Debbie Dalhouse-Curtis
ddalhou@gmail.com

e Don Rice
don@donrice.net

e Cathy Turner
QOutbackcat? mail.com

e _Margaret Waggoner
Mwagagoner7360@outiook.com

e Becky Whitehead
revbec@me.com

SKY VALLEY MARKETING COMMITTEE

e Gordon Brand- Chairperson
gjbrand@msn.com

e Jim Curtis — Sky Valley Councilman Rep
councilorjim@agmail.com

e Paul Evans — Sky Valley Property Owners Association Rep
p.l.evans@att.net

e Lise Rozier — Sky Valley Property Owners Association Rep
Lise2229@yahoo.com

32



e Harry Collins — Sky Valley Country Club Rep
harry@harry-collins.com

e Jack Brandon- Sky Valley Country Club Re
jackpbrandon@gmail.com

Daniela Olivera — Sky Valley Time Shares Rep
daniela@timeshares-skyvalley.com

e John Robson — Sky Valley Time Shares Rep
john@timeshares-skyvalley.com

e Ryan DuBois — Ex Officio Member — General Manager of Sky

Valley Country Club
rvan@skyvalleycountryclub.com

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Dan McAfee — Chairperson
mcafeesvc@gmail.com

Tony Allred
tallredsvc@gmail.com

e David Spears

dmspears@mns.com

¢ Don Germano

dgermano@bellsouth.net

e Jim Phelps
Jrphelps12@gmail.com

e Jim Pyburn
svgainspections@amail.com

33



STATE OF GEORGIA RESOLUTION NO.
COUNTY OF RABUN

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA
ADOPTING THE
2024 SKY VALLEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

WHEREAS, the City Council, the governing authority of Sky Valley, Georgia in cooperation
with Rabun County and the other municipalities within Rabun County has
updated the 2024 Rabun County Joint Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, the update was prepared in accordance with the Rules and Procedures of the
Georgia Department of Community Affairs, including requirements for public
hearing opportunities; and

WHEREAS, the update has been reviewed and approved by the Georgia Mountains Regional
Commission and the Georgia Department of Community Affairs;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the update to the Sky
Valley- Rabun County Joint Comprehensive Plan is adopted.

SO RESOLVED, this __ day of January 2025.

APPROVED:

HOLLIE STEIL, MAYOR JIM CURTIS, COUNCILOR
BILL OLIVER, COUNCILOR
TONY ALLRED, COUNCILOR
DAN MCAFEE COUNCILOR
BRUCE TURNER, COUNCILOR

ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM:

KAREN FLEMING DOUGLAS KIDD

CITY CLERK CITY ATTORNEY

34



Sky Valley Marketing Committee 2025 Approved Budget

2023
Actual

Monetary Contributions
City of Sky Valley $5,000
POA $5,000
Club $5,000
SV Time Shares
Total $15,000

Checking account balance carryover

Funds available for marketing expenses

EXPENSES
Communications
Golf Life $9,000
Other photography $611
Subtotal Communications $9,611
Advertising
Travcom Visitor Map $625
Mountain Lake Publishing $1,455

Vacation Guide Mag. 3 ed.
Clayton Tribune, Mt. Traveler 2 $1,290

Rabun County Travler Guide $400
Clayton Tribune Busines Line $65
Paws4life Calendar ad
Other advertising
Subtotal Advertising $4,085
General Supplies and Materials
Hay Bale Materials $227
Visitor Center, goodie bags, banners $368

Subtotal General Supplies and Materials $596

Sky Valley Promotions

T shirts $0
Meals,cleaning hosting media $400
Gift apparel $307
Golf goodie bags $180
Subtotal € Promotions $887
Total expenses prior to miscellaneous $15,179

2024 2024 2025

Budget  Actual Budget

$5,000 $5,000 $5,000
$5,000  $5,000 $5,000
$5,000  $5,000 $5,000
$5,000

$15,000 $15,000 $20,000

$4,619 $6,404 $6,404

$19,619 $19,619 $26,404

$9720 $9,720  $9,720
$500 $0  $500

$10.220 $9,720 H§10.220

$0 $0 $650
$1,571  $1,455 $1,455

$1,343  $1,328 $1,440

$435 $0 $435
$70 0 $75
$50 0 $55

$3739  $2783 INSENT0

$350 $243 $350
$250 $0 $600
$600 $243 | $950
$0 $0 $2,000
$1,300 $100 $2,810
$300 $80 $480
$200 $289 $400

$3,050  $469 [NN$5,690 |

$17,619 $13,215 $20,970

35



Miscellaneous Expenses
Total expenses

Unallocated funds

$2,000 $0
$14,808 $19,619 $13,215

$0  $6,404

$5,434
$26,404

$0

36



ZONING ORDINANCE

CITY OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING REPEALING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY
OF SKY VALLEY, GEORGIA ADOPTED ON AUGUST 11, 2003, AND-ADOPHINGA-NEW

ZONING ORDINANCE EOR THE CITY OF SKY-VALLEY-GEORGIA FOR THE
PURPOSE OF REGULATING THE LOCATION, HEIGHT, BULK, NUMBER OF
STORIES AND THE SIZE OF STRUCTURES; THE AMOUNT OF LOT WHICH MAY
BE OCCUPIED; THE SIZE OF YARDS, COURTS, AND OTHER OPEN SPACE;

THE DENSITY AND DISTRIBUTION OF POPULATION; THE REGULATION OF SOLAR
ENERGY SYSTEMS (SES), THE USE OF STRUCTURES, AND LAND FOR TRADE
COMMERCE, RESIDENCE, RECREATION, CONSERVATION, WATER SUPPLY,
SANITATION, PUBLIC ACTIVITIES, AND OTHER PURPOSES; CREATING DISTRICTS
FOR SAID PURPOSES AND ESTABLISHING THE BOUNDARIES THEREOF; DEFINING
CERTAIN TERMS USED HEREIN; PROVIDING FOR THE METHOD OF
ADMINISTRATION AND AMENDMENT; DEFINING THE POWERS AND DUTIES OF
THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION, BUILDING INSPECTOR, AND
GOVERNING AUTHORITY;

PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATION; REPEALING CONFLICTING

REGULATIONS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

ARTICLE I
PREAMBLE AND ENACTMENT CLAUSE

Pursuant to the authority conferred by the 1983 Georgia State Constitution, Article IX,
Section 11, Paragraph IV, and for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, convenience, order,
prosperity, and general welfare of the present and future inhabitants of the City of Sky Valley

and the State of Georgia, including among other purposes the lessening of congestion in the

37



streets; securing safety from fire, flood, panic, and other dangers; promoting health and the
general welfare; providing adequate light and air; preventing the overcrowding of land and
avoiding both undue concentration of population and urban sprawl; facilitating the adequate
provision of water, sewerage service, parks, and other public requirements; promoting such
distribution of population, classification of land uses, distribution of land uses and distribution of
land development and utilization as will tend to facilitate and promote desirable living conditions
and the sustained stability of neighborhoods; improving the aesthetic appearance of the City;
protecting property against blight and depreciation; securing economy in governmental
expenditures; conserving the value of property; and encouraging the most appropriate use of

land, structures throughout the City of Sky Valley.

The Council of the City of Sky Valley hereby ordains and enacts into law the following

Articles and Sections.
ARTICLE 11
SHORT TITLE

These regulations shall be known and may be cited as the “Zoning Ordinance of the City

of Sky Valley, Georgia.”

ARTICLE III
DEFINITIONS OF TERMS USED IN ORDINANCE

When used in this Ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning
given in this Article. Terms not herein defined shall have their customary dictionary definitions
where not inconsistent with the context. The term “shall” is mandatory. When not inconsistent
with the context, words used in the singular number include the plural and those used in the

plural number include the singular. Words used in the present tense include the future.

Accessory Building or Use: A building or use (which includes a structure not otherwise

identified as a building) which is subordinate to and serves a principal building or principal use;
is subordinate in area, extent, or purpose to the principal building or use served; contributes to
the comfort, convenience or necessity of occupants of the principal building or principal use; and

is located on the same lot as the principal building or



principal use.

Apartment Building: A multi-family dwelling located on a parcel of land under a single

ownership, designed for use by three or more housekeeping units, living independently of each

other, and doing their own cooking on the premises.

Building: Any structure, either temporary or permanent, above or below ground, having a

roof or other covering, and designed, built, or used as a shelter or enclosure for persons, animals,

or property of any kind, including tents, awnings, or vehicles used for purposes of a building.

Building Official: The Chief Building Inspector of the City of Sky Valley, or his

authorized representative.

Building Setback Line: A line establishing the minimum allowable distance between the

main or front wall of a building or any covered porches, and the street right-of-way or property
line when measured perpendicularly thereto. In the case of corner lots or double frontage lots,

front yard requirements shall be observed for those areas adjacent to street right-of- ways.

Certificate of Occupancy: A legal statement or document issued by the Building Official

indicating that the building and use or reuse of a particular building or land is in conformity with
all applicable codes and regulations, and that such building or land may be occupied for the

purpose stated therein.

Conditional Zoning: The granting or adoption of zoning for property subject to

compliance with restrictions as to use, size, density or actions stipulated by the City of Sky

Valley to mitigate adverse impacts that are anticipated without imposition of such conditions.

Condominium (Residential Building): A building or complex of multiple-unit dwellings

in which a tenant holds full title to his unit and joint ownership in the common grounds.

District. Zoning: A geographical area or areas, designated with use of symbols on the

Official Zoning Map, wherein uses of land are restricted in type, size, height and other

limitations as established in these regulations.

Dwelling: A building, other than a mobile home or house trailer, designed, arranged or

used for permanent living, and/or sleeping quarters.

39



Dwelling Unit: A building, or portion thereof, designed, arranged and used for living
quarters for one (1) or more persons living as a single housekeeping unit with cooking facilities,
but not including mobile homes and units in hotels or other structures designed for transient

residence.

Dwelling. Multi-Family: A building designed for or occupied exclusively by three

(3) or more single housekeeping units with separate kitchen or house-keeping facilities for each
family or housekeeping unit, including apartment houses, row houses, town houses, and similar
housing types but not including motels, hotels, lodging houses, hospitals, nursing homes, or

public institutions such as prisons and mental institutions.

Dwelling, Single-Family: A building designed or arranged to be occupied by one (1)

single housekeeping unit only.

Dwelling, Two-Family (Duplex): A building designed or arranged to be occupied by two

(2) single housekeeping units living independently of each other.

Employee Housing: A Dwelling Unit for persons employed within the City boundaries

of Sky Valley located exclusively within the resort commercial, (RC), or maintenance M)
districts. One individual within a family needs to be employed within Sky Valley in order to
reside in Employee Housing. No more than 10 employee designated Dwelling Units may be
located in the Resort Commercial zoning district. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary
no more than a total of 20 people will be allowed in employee housing in the Resort Commercial
District. Only hospitality employees may be housed in the Resort Commercial zoning district.

No more than 20 employees designated Dwelling Units may be located in the Maintenance

Zoning district. Only maintenance employees may be housed in the Maintenance zoning district.

Minimum size standards are 350 square feet per person within a structure. Staff

accommodations shall mean the same thing as Employee Housing.

Fence: An enclosure or barrier, composed of wood, masonry, stone, wire, iron, or other
materials or combination of materials used as a boundary, means of protection, privacy
screening, or confinement, including brick or concrete walls but not including hedges, shrubs,

trees, or other natural growth.

40



Garage: An accessory building or portion of a principal building only for the private

storage of motor vehicles and other personal property as an accessory use.

Height, Building: The distance measured from the grade to the highest point of the

coping of a flat roof; to the deck lines of a mansard roof; or to the mean height level between the

eaves and ridge of a gable, hip or gambrel roof.

Home Occupation: An occupation carried on entirely within a residence by the occupants

thereof, which activity is clearly incidental to the use of the residence as a dwelling and which
does not change the residential character thereof and is conducted in a manner as to not give any
outward appearance of a business in the ordinary meaning of the term. This occupation does not
infringe upon the right of neighboring residents to enjoy a peaceful occupancy of their homes for
which purpose the residential use district was created and primarily intended.

Land-Distributing Activity: Any grading, scraping, excavating, or filling of land;

clearing of vegetation; any other alteration of land which causes land and stream bank erosion
situation or water pollution; and any construction, rebuilding or alteration of a structure.

Lodging Services: a facility that offers temporary shelter accommodations, or place for

such shelter, open to the public for a fee such as a hotel or motel.

Lot: A parcel of land occupied or capable of being occupied for a /by a building or group
of buildings devoted to a common use, together with the customary accessories and open spaces
belonging to the same and having principal frontage on a public street; a developed or

undeveloped tract of land in one ownership legally transferable as a single unit of land.

Metes and Bounds: A system of describing and identifying land by distances or measures

(metes) and bearings or direction (bounds) from an identifiable point of reference, such as a
monument or other marker or the corner of intersecting streets.

Manufactured Home (Mobile Home): A structure to be located only in a manufactured

home park, transportable in one or more sections, which, in the traveling mode, is eight body feet
or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length, when erected on site, is 320 or more square feet
in floor area, and which is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used as a dwelling with
or without a permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities, and includes the

plumbing, heating, air-conditioning, and electrical systems contained therein; or a structure that



otherwise comes within the definition of a "manufactured home" under the National Manufactured
Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of 1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5401-5445).

Manufactured Home Park (Mobile Home Park): Property meeting the requirements of

Article XIV of this ordinance on which three of more manufactured homes, recreational vehicles,
or combination thereof are located or intended to be located for purposes of residential or
recreational occupancy of a temporary, seasonal, or permanent nature. A campground designed

to serve recreational vehicles is also included in this definition.

Non-Conforming Use: Any building or use of land or building lawfully existing at the

effective date of these regulations or as a result of subsequent amendments to these regulations,
which does not conform with the permitted use provisions established herein for the district in

which it is located.

Official Zoning Map: The map, which accompanies the zoning ordinance text, that

delineates the geographic location of the boundaries of zoning districts established in this

ordinance in relation to natural features, man-made features and/or property uses.

Parking Space: An area having typical dimensions of not less than (9) feet by twenty (20)
feet and three hundred (300) square feet including maneuvering space within a parking lot, to be

used exclusively as a temporary storage space for a motor vehicle.

Passive Recreation: Recreational opportunities that occur in a natural setting which

require minimal development or facilities, and the importance of the environment or setting for
the activities is greater than in developed or active recreation settings. Passive recreation
activities include bird watching, walking, photography, hiking, horseback riding, cross country
skiing, kite flying, and bicycling.

Permitted Use: A use by right which is specifically authorized in a particular zoning

district.

Planned Unit Development: A form of development usually characterized by a unified

site design for a number of housing units, clustered buildings, common open space, density

increases, and a mix of building types and land uses.

Setback: The minimum horizontal distance between a street, alley, the property boundary

lines of a lot and the front, rear, or side lines of a building located on that lot.

42



Site Plan: A graphic illustration, two-dimensional, prepared to scale, showing accurately
and with complete dimensioning, the boundaries of a lot or tract and the location of all buildings,

structures, uses and principal site development features proposed for a specific lot or tract of

land.

Solar Energy System (SES): a device or structural design feature that provides for the

collection of solar energy for electricity generation, consumption, or transmission, or for thermal

applications.

Subdivision: The division of a parcel or tract of land into two or more lots for the
purposes of creation of lots for development, the rearrangement of existing lot lines, or for the

purpose of transfer of ownership.

ARTICLE IV
ESTABLISHMENT OF DISTRICTS:

PROVISION FOR OFFICIAL ZONING MAP

Section 401. Use Districts.

The Land Use Districts established in this Ordinance are intended to: promote the orderly
future development of the city in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan; discourage the size
and type of development that would create excessive requirements and costs for public services;
discourage uses which because of their size or type would generate an abnormal amount of
traffic on minor streets; establish relationships between and among land uses that will ensure
compatibility and maintain quality of life; and protect and promote suitable environments for
residences, recreation, commercial and other uses. The following use districts are hereby
established:

(a) Single-Family Residential (SF)

(b) Mixed Residential (MR)

(c) Resort Commercial (RC)

(d) Commercial and Municipal (CM)

(e) Maintenance (M)

(H) Recreation (REC)

43



(2) Manufactured Home Park (MHP) — see Article XIV

Section 402. Official Zoning Map.

The location and boundaries of the above listed districts are hereby established as shown
on a map entitled Official Zoning Map of the City of Sky Valley, Georgia. Said map, together
with all explanatory matter thereon, is hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of

this Ordinance.

The Official Zoning Map shall be located within the City Hall of the City of Sky Valley
and identified by the signature of the Mayor, attested by the City Clerk, and bear the seal of the
City or that of a Notary Public under the following words:

“This is to certify that this is the Official Zoning Map referred to in Article III of the Zoning
Ordinance, City of Sky Valley, Georgia™, together with the date of the adoption of the

Ordinance.

If in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance and the applicable laws of the State
of Georgia, as changes are made in boundaries or other matter portrayed on the Official Zoning
Map, such changes shall be entered on the Official Zoning Map promptly after the amendment
has been approved by the City Council, with appropriate entry or indication of such amendment

on the Official Zoning Map.

No changes of any nature shall be made in the Official Zoning Map or matter shown
thereon except in conformity with the procedures set forth in this Ordinance. Any unauthorized
change of whatever kind by any person or persons shall be considered violation of this

Ordinance.

Section 403. Interpretation of District Boundaries.

Where uncertainty exists with respect to the boundaries of any of the use districts as shown on

the official zoning map, the following rules shall apply:

403.1 Surveyed property lines of adjacent property owners shall be construed as the use

district boundary provided the surveyed property lines coincide.

403.2 Where district boundaries are indicated as approximately following the center

lines of streets or highways, street lines or highway right-of-way lines or such lines



extended, such center lines, street lines or highway right-of-way lines shall be construed

to be such boundaries.

403.3 Where district boundaries are so indicated that they approximately follow lot

lines, such lot lines shall be construed to be said boundaries.

403.4 Where district boundaries are so indicated that they are approximately parallel to
the center lines of streets or highways, or rights-of-way of same, such district boundaries
shall be construed as being parallel thereto and at such distance therefrom as indicated on
the official land use intensity districts map. If no distance is given, such dimension shall

be determined by a survey to existing and known points.

403.5 Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary all district use boundaries must be
capable of being identified by a survey or by surveys of adjacent properties or by
established and surveyed rights of way. In instances where there are questions about a
boundary of a use district which cannot otherwise be identified as specified in this section
the City Council shall establish the use district boundary and thereafter confirm the

boundary by a surveyed line.

ARTICLE V

NON-CONFORMING LOTS, BUILDINGS AND USES

Section 501. Purpose and Intent.

Within the districts established by this ordinance, there exist certain incompatible lots,

buildings, structures, signs and uses of land which were lawful before these regulations were

adopted but which would be prohibited, regulated or restricted under the terms of these

regulations or future amendments.

[t is the intention of this article to permit these non-conformities to continue until they are

removed, but not to encourage their survival. Except as otherwise provided it is further the intent

of these regulations that non-conformities shall not be enlarged upon, expanded or extended, nor

be used as grounds for variances or for adding other structures or uses prohibited elsewhere in

the same district.



Section 502. Non-Conforming Lots Of Record.

In any district, notwithstanding limitations imposed by other provisions of these
regulations, a single-family dwelling and customary accessory buildings or any other permitted
use may be erected on any single non-conforming lot of record, as defined by these regulations,
even though such lot fails to meet the requirements for area or width, or both, applicable to the
particular district involved, provided that yard dimensions and other requirements of the lot shall
conform to the regulations for the district in which the lot is located, or a variance is obtained

from the City Council.

Except for those lots described above, if two (2) or more lots or combinations of lots and
portions of lots with continuous frontage in single ownership are of record at the time of
adoption or amendment of these regulations, and if all or part of the lots do not meet the
requirements for lot width and area as established by these regulations, the lands involved shall
be considered an undivided parcel for the purposes of these regulations, and no portion of said
parcel shall be used which does not meet lot width and area requirements established by these
regulations, nor shall any division of the parcel be made which leaves remaining any lot with

width or area below the applicable requirements.

Section 503. Continuance of Non-Conforming Use.

The lawful use of any building, structure, sign or land existing at the time of enactment of
these regulations may be continued, even though such use does not conform with the use
provisions of these regulations, except that the use of a principal building, structure or land

containing a non-conforming use shall not be:
503.1 Changed to another non-conforming use;
503.2 Reestablished after discontinuance or abandonment for one (1) year.

503.3 Expanded, enlarged or extended, unless such use is changed to a use permitted in

the district in which such use is located;

503.4 Rebuilt, altered or repaired after damage exceeding seventy—five (75) percent of

the fair sales value of the building immediately prior to damage.

503.5 Moved in whole or in part to any other portion of the lot occupied by such use,

except in conformity with these regulations.

10

46



Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to prevent the strengthening or restoring to a safe
condition any building, structure, or portion thereof, declared to be unsafe by an official charged

with protecting the public safety or health, upon order of such official.
Changes in ownership or tenancy of a non-conforming use are permitted.

Section 504. Variances - Not Non-Conforming Use.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary any variance previously granted by the City of
Sky Valley will be allowed to remain as a variance and the terms of the variance as authorized
will not be considered in classifying a lot, building, structure, sign or land use as non-

conforming.

Section 505. Expansion of Non-Conforming Buildings.

A non-conforming building which contains a conforming use may be expanded, enlarged
or extended, provided that any such additions meet the applicable yard and building setbacks,
buffer and landscape strip requirements and all other regulations for the district in which it is
located. This section shall not, however, be construed as to authorize the expansion of anon
conforming building for a use which is not permitted by the regulations for the district within

which such building is located.

Section 506. Buildings Under Construction.

Nothing in this Article shall be deemed to require a change in the plans, construction, or
designated use of any building on which actual construction was lawfully begun prior to the

adoption of these regulations.

ARTICLE VI

PARKING AND LOADING

Section 601. Off-Street Parking Required.

Off-street automobile parking spaces shall be provided on every lot on which any
building, structure, or use is hereafter established in all use districts, except as otherwise

specifically exempted by this Ordinance. Required parking spaces shall be available for the

11

47



parking of operable passenger vehicles for residents, customers, patrons, and employees, as
appropriate given the subject use.

Section 602. Location of Off-Street Parking Areas.

All parking spaces required by this Ordinance shall be provided on the same lot with the
main building or use that it serves. Upon demonstration that the parking spaces required are not
available and cannot reasonably be provided on the same lot as the building, structure or use it
serves, the Planning Commission may permit the required parking spaces to be provided on any
lot, of which a substantial portion is within 400 feet of such building, structure, or use. This
provision shall require submittal of evidence of ownership or valid agreement to lease the
parking area off-site that is intended to be used to comply with this article.

Section 603. Parking Plan Required.

Before any building or land use permit is issued, the proposed parking lot layout and area
must be found by the Planning Commission to be in compliance with all requirements of this
Ordinance. A parking plan, for all but detached single-family uses, shall be submitted for
approval by the Planning Commission. Occupancy of the land or use of a building shall not
occur until the Planning Commission and City Council determines that parking facilities are

available in accordance with the approved plan.

Section 604. Minimum Number of Parking Spaces Required.

On each lot where a building, structure, or use exists, hard surfaced and maintained off-
street parking shall be provided according to Table 1. In the interests of reducing impacts and
minimizing impervious surfaces at Sky Valley, shared/joint/mixed or consecutive parking to
reduce the number of parking spaces is encouraged. No existing facility used for off-street
parking shall be reduced in capacity to less than the minimum required number of spaces, or

altered in design or function to less than the minimum standards.

Table 1
Minimum Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces Required
Parking Spaces Required
Use Example (Per Gross Floor Area Devoted to the Use, or Per
Employee on Largest Shift, Except as Otherwise Specified)

COMMERCIAL USES

Art gallery One per 400 square feet

Bank, credit union, One per 300 square feet (also see stacking requirements for drive-

12

48



savings and loan

through facilities)

Barber shop or beauty
parlor

One and one-half per operator’s chair, plus one per employee

Bed and breakfast inn

Two for the owner-operator plus one per guest bedroom

Conference center and
retreat centers

One per 200 square feet if primary use, or one per 400 square feet
if accessory use

Convenience store

One per 250 square feet plus one per employee

Home furnishing store

One per 1,000 square feet plus one per employee

Grocery or food store

One per 200 square feet

Health Spa or fitness club

Ten plus one per each 200 square feet over 1,000 square feet

Hotel

3/4 per guest room, plus one per employee, plus one per specified
requirements for restaurants and meeting rooms as applicable

Nursery or greenhouse

One per 1000 square feet devoted to sales

Office

One per 300 square feet

Restaurant, bar, or tavern

One per Table

Shopping center

Four and one-half spaces per 1000 square feet

Theater, cinema

One per three fixed seats

INSTITUTIONAL USES

Church, temple,
synagogue and place of
worship

One per four seats in room with greatest seating capacity

Day care center

One per employee, plus one per five children, plus one space for
each vehicle associated with facility

Government office

One per 300 square feet

Hospital or clinic

One per four beds, plus one per two employees

Library or museum

One per 300 square feet

Post office

One per 200 square feet

RESIDENTIAL USES

Multifamily, duplex

Three per unit

Multifamily, triplex

Four per unit

Multifamily, more than 3
units per structure

One and one half spaces per unit

Single-family detached or
attached

Two per unit if under 2,500 s.f
Three per unit if 2,500-4,000 s.f.
Four per unit if over 4,000 s.f.

Employee Housing/Staff
Accommodations

One space for each bedroom

RECREATIONAL
USES

Active Recreational
Facilities, such as tennis
courts and pools, as
principal uses

One per 400 square feet of gross floor area. Plus one and one-half
per hole for golf course, three per tennis or racquetball court, and
one per 100 square feet of surface water area for swimming pools

Active Recreational
Facilities, such as tennis

One per 600 square feet of gross floor area. Plus three per tennis
racquetball court, and one per 150 square feet of surface water

13

49



courts and pools, as area for swimming pools

accessory to one or more

permitted uses (e.g.

subdivision amenity)

Community center One per 250 square feet

Country clubs, including

golf courses and One per 400 square feet of gross floor area. Plus one and one-half
clubhouses including per hole for golf course, two per tennis court, and one per 100
restaurants and golf pro square feet of surface for swimming pools

shops as accessory uses

Golf course Three per hole

G(.)lf Firwmg range, One for every tee

principal use

Section 605. Interpretations of Parking Requirements.

Where a fractional space results during the calculation of required parking, the required
number of parking spaces shall be construed to be the next highest whole number. Where the
parking requirement for a particular use is not described in this article, and where no similar use
is listed, the Planning Commission shall determine the number of spaces to be provided based on
requirements for similar uses, location of the proposed use, the number of employees on the
largest shift, the total square footage, potential customer use, and other expected demand and
traffic generated by the proposed use.

Section 606. Reduction of Required Parking for Mixed or Joint Use of Parking Spaces.

When more than one use is provided on a lot, and such uses operate more or less
simultaneously, the total requirements for off-street parking spaces shall be the sum of the
requirements for the various uses computed separately. The Planning Commission may
authorize (and will encourage) a reduction in the total number of required off-street parking
spaces for two or more uses jointly providing parking facilities when their respective hours of
need of maximum parking do not normally overlap, provided that the developer submits
sufficient data to demonstrate that the hours of maximum demand for parking at the respective
uses do not normally overlap. The required spaces assigned to one use may not be assigned to
another use at the same time, except that one-half of the parking spaces required for churches,
theaters or assembly halls whose peak attendance will be at night or on Sundays may be assigned
to a use which will be closed at night or on Sundays.

Section 607. Off-Street Loading Areas Required for Specified Uses.

14

50



On the same lot with every building, structure or part thereof, erected or occupied for
storage, market, hotel, or retail business, there shall be provided and maintained adequate space
for the standing, loading and unloading of such materials to avoid undue interference with public
use of streets, alleys, and parking areas.

Section 608. Loading Area Specifications.

Unless otherwise approved by the Planning Commission, loading spaces shall be a
minimum of 14 feet wide, 40 feet long, with 14 feet of height clearance. Said loading area shall
be located to the rear of the building unless site design precludes a rear location, in which case
loading shall be to the side of a building.

Section 609. Minimum Number of Off-Street Loading Spaces Required.

One off-street loading space for the first 5,000 square feet of gross floor area or fractional
part thereof for retail or other non-residential use for which a loading space is required. One
additional space shall be required for each additional 10,000 square feet of gross floor area or

fractional part thereof for retail or other non-residential use.

ARTICLE VII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section 701. Use. Occupancy and Erection.

No structure, land, open space or water shall hereafter be used or occupied and no
structure or part thereof shall hereafter be erected, constructed, reconstructed, moved,
structurally altered or maintained, and no new use or change shall be made or maintained of any
structure, land, open space or water, unless in conformity with all the regulations herein specified

for the district in which it is located.

Section 702. Minimum Requirements.

Within each district, the regulations set forth shall be minimum requirements and shall

apply uniformly to each class or kind of structure or land.

Section 703. Height Limitations.

15

51



All structures shall comply with the City of Sky Valley Ordinance to Protect the
Mountains of Sky Valley, Georgia and to Provide for Future Growth and Development within
the Protected Mountains, as adopted and amended from time to time, as well as other City of Sky
Valley Building Code regulations presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the City of
Sky Valley.

The height limitations established herein shall not apply to chimneys, smokestacks,
church spires and steeples, domes, flag poles, public monuments, observation towers, water
towers, non-commercial radio and television towers, electricity transmission towers, utility poles

and similar structures.

Section 704. Every Use Must Be Upon A Lot.

No structure shall be erected or use established unless upon a “lot of record” as defined

by these regulations except as otherwise provided herein.

Section 705. One Principal Structure on a Lot.

Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Ordinance only one principal structure
and its accessory buildings may hereafter be erected on any one lot intended for such use;
provided, however, that more than one multiple dwelling, office, or commercial building may be
located upon a lot, subject to setbacks and separation as provided in these regulations. This
provision specifically excludes the erection of more than one (1) single-family dwelling on any
given lot, and more than one (1) single-family dwelling hereafter erected on any given lot shall
be considered a violation of these regulations. The City Council shall not be empowered to grant

variances to this Section.

Section 706. Separation Between Principal Structures.

No principal structure shall be located closer than thirty (30) feet to another principal

structure.

Section 707. Reduction In Lot Size Prohibited.

Without obtaining a variance no lot shall be reduced, divided or changed in size so that
lot width, size of yards, lot area per dwelling unit or any other requirement of these regulations is
not maintained, unless said reduction or division is necessary to provide land which is acquired

for a public purpose.

16

52



Section 708. Street Frontage Requirement.

No structure shall hereafter be erected on a lot, and no lot shall hereafter be created or

subdivided, that does not abut for at least thirty (30) feet on a public street.

Section 709. Use Prohibited When Not Specified.

Unless otherwise stated, any use not specifically permitted in a use district as provided in

these regulations shall ‘be prohibited in that district.

Section 710. Accessory Buildings and Uses.

Accessory buildings and uses shall be permitted only in side or rear yards, except as

otherwise provided by these regulations.
Accessory buildings and uses shall be permitted only if they meet the following:

1. No accessory building or structure shall be erected on a lot prior to the time of

construction of the principal building to which it is accessory.

2. Only one (1) detached accessory building or structure shall be permitted on a

residential lot.

3. Accessory building or structure and use shall be setback a minimum of fifteen

(15) feet from any lot line.

4. Any accessory building or structure shall be subject to and must conform to all

structural regulations applicable to the principal structure.

31, In the case of double frontage lots, accessory building or structures shall observe

front yard requirements on both streets.

6. Accessory building or structures in residential districts shall not be used for any

type of commercial operation.

7. No accessory building or structure on a residential lot shall exceed a height of

twenty (20) feet.

8. Detached accessory building or structures shall be located a minimum of ten (10)

feet from the principal building on a lot.

17

53



9.

In no instance shall an accessory building or structure exceed the gross ground

floor area of the principal building.

Section 711. Regulations For Specific Accessory Structures.

The following specified structures shall conform to the following regulations:

1.

Walls:

The erection of walls within the City of Sky Valley shall comply with the City of
Sky Valley Building Code Ordinance, as adopted and amended from time to time,
as well as other regulations presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the

City of Sky Valley. A permit shall be obtained from the Building Official.
Fences:

The erection of fences within the City of Sky Valley shall comply with the City of
Sky Valley Fence Ordinance, as adopted and amended from time to time, as well
as other regulations presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the City of
Sky Valley. A permit shall be obtained from the Building Official.

Swimming Pools:

Swimming pools shall be enclosed by a security fence a minimum of six (6) feet
in height. Said fence shall offer security against unauthorized use of a swimming

pool. A permit shall be obtained from the Building Official.

Section 712. Home Occupations.

A home occupation as defined by these regulations shall conform to the following

requirements:

1.

Only residents of the dwelling may be engaged in the home occupation.

Employment of person(s) not residing in the dwelling is expressly prohibited.

The home occupation shall be clearly incidental and secondary to the residential
use of the dwelling and shall not change the residential character of the building

or lot.

18

54



3. No storage or display of products or materials shall be visible from the adjoining
street or adjacent properties, and only products produced on the premises may be

sold on the premises.

4. Only vehicles used primarily as passenger vehicles shall be permitted in

connection with the conduct of a home occupation.

5. No internal or external alterations of the dwelling solely for the accommodation

of a home occupation are permitted.

6. No chemical, electrical, or mechanical equipment that is not normally a part of
domestic or household equipment shall be used primarily for commercial
purposes, other than reproduction equipment and other equipment approved by

the City Council for permitted home occupations.

7. Use of a building for a home occupation shall not exceed twenty-five (25%)
percent of one (1) floor of the principal building. Home occupations are not

permitted, in whole or part, within accessory buildings.

8. An occupational tax certificate shall be obtained from the City of Sky Valley prior
to the operation of any home occupation pursuant to the City of Sky Valley
Occupational Tax Ordinance, as adopted and amended from time to time, as well

as other regulations presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the City of
Sky Valley.

9, The following uses are allowable as home occupations:

Tutoring, consultation and instruction in music, dance, arts, crafts and similar

subjects, limited to two (2) students at one time; day care providers serving six (6)

or less persons; professional services (i.e., attorneys, architects, accountants,
realtors, insurance and travel agents; secretarial services and answering services;
mail order and general offices not involving storage of equipment, materials or

vehicles; phone solicitations; and food catering) . All other uses are prohibited.

Section 713. Visibility at Intersections.

19 55



No fence, wall, sign, hedge or planting which obstructs the sight lines at elevations
between two (2) and twelve (12) feet above any roadway shall be placed or permitted to remain
on any corner lot within the triangular area formed by the street right-of-way lines, or such lines
extended, and a line connecting such right-of-way lines at points twenty-five (25) feet from the

intersection of the right-of-way lines.

Notwithstanding the above restrictions, the Code Enforcement Officer is hereby
authorized to approve fences, walls, etc. within the above-described triangular area where, in his
opinion, said fence, wall, etc. will not cause sight visibility problems for pedestrians and/or
motorists, and where the application of the provisions of this section would pose an unnecessary

or unreasonable hardship.

Section 714. Parking or Storage of Recreational Vehicles.

Unless parked in a totally enclosed area recreational equipment such as boats, boat
trailers, travel trailers, pick-up campers or coaches, motorized dwellings, motor coaches, tent
trailers and other vehicles may be parked or stored anywhere on residential premises for a period

not to exceed forty-eight (48) hours during loading and unloading.

Section 715. Abandoned. Wrecked or Junked Vehicles and Materials.

Except as otherwise expressly permitted, it shall be prohibited in all districts to park or
continuously store abandoned, wrecked, junked or inoperable vehicles, power-driven
construction equipment, used lumber or metal, or any other miscellaneous scrap material in
quantity that is visible from a public street or adjacent or abutting property. Said prohibition shall
not be construed as to prohibit the temporary repair or maintenance of automobiles owned by the
property owner or the storage of such vehicles, equipment or other materials within an enclosed

building, provided that such vehicles, equipment or materials are not for commercial sale.

Section 716. Subdivision Plats Must Meet Zoning Requirements.

No proposed plat of a subdivision, nor any plat of re-subdivision, shall hereafter be
approved by the City of Sky Valley or by the Planning and Zoning Commission unless the lots
within such plat equal or exceed the minimum size and width requirements set forth in the
various zoning districts in these regulations and unless such plat indicates conformity with the

statutes of the State of Georgia and ordinances and regulations of the City of Sky Valley (to

20

56



include, but not limited to, the Mountain Protection ordinance and the Sky Valley Subdivision

Ordinance).

Section 717. Yard Sales.

Yard sales, as herein defined, are permitted uses in any residential district, subject to the

following requirements:
1. A permit shall be obtained from the Building Official.
2. The duration of such yard sale shall not exceed forty- eight (48) hours.

3. A permit shall not be issued for a yard sale on a particular property more often

than once every year (12) months.

4. Yard sales shall only offer for display and/or sale those items owned by the
person(s) who presently own, rent or lease the property on which the yard sale

takes place.

5. Yard sale signs are prohibited except on the property where the yard sale is taking

place and during the actual days of the sale.

Section 718. Buffer Required.

Upon any side or rear lot line in any non-residential district except the recreation district
which abuts a residential district there shall be a dense planted buffer strip at least six (6) feet in
height and fifty (50) feet in width along the rear and side lot lines abutting the residential

properties, except where zoned specifically otherwise.

Section 719. Reference to Sign Regulations.

The erection and/or maintenance of signs within the City of Sky Valley shall comply with
the City of Sky Valley Sign Ordinance, as adopted and amended from time to time, as well as

other regulations presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the City of Sky Valley.

Section 720. Reference to Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Ordinance.

Any land disturbing activity shall comply with the City of Sky Valley Soil Erosion and
Sedimentation Control Ordinance, as adopted and amended from time to time, as well as other

applicable State law presently in effect and/or hereinafter adopted by the City of Sky Valley.

21



Section 721. Manufactured Home.

Manufactured homes are only permitted in manufactured home parks as defined in this

ordinance.

Section 722. Plat Approval Required.

No plat shall hereafter be recorded by the Rabun County Clerk of Superior Court unless
such plat has been approved by the City Council of Sky Valley.

Section 723. Solar Energy Svystems (SES).

For purposes of the Sky Valley zoning ordinance, SES refers only to (1) photovoltaic
SESs that convert solar energy directly into electricity through a semiconductor device or (2)
solar thermal systems that use collectors to convert the sun’s rays into useful forms of energy for
water heating, space heating, or space cooling.
Integrated Solar Energy System means an SES where solar materials are incorporated into
building material, such that the two are reasonably indistinguishable, or where solar materials are

used in place of traditional building components, such that the SES is structurally an integral part
of a house, building, or other structure. An Integrated SES may be incorporated into, among

other things, a building facade, skylight, shingles, canopy, light, or parking meter.

Rooftop Solar Energy System means an SES that is structurally mounted to the roof of a house,
building, or other structure and does not qualify as an Integrated SES.

Ground Mounted Solar Energy System means an SES that is structurally mounted to the
ground and does not qualify as an Integrated SES. For purposes of the Sky Valley zoning code,
any solar canopy that does not qualify as an Integrated SES shall be considered a Ground
Mounted SES, regardless of where it is mounted.

PERMITTED USES BY ZONING DISTRICT

1. — Applicability

22

58



(a) This article applies to the siting, construction, installation, and decommissioning of any
new SES to be constructed or installed after [the effective date of this ordinance] within
the jurisdiction of Sky Valley.

(b) Any SES that, prior to [the effective date of this ordinance];

1. isin operation;
is being lawfully sited, constructed, or installed; or
has caused the incurrence of substantial liabilities relating to siting, construction, or
installation; shall be exempt from complying with this [ordinance], unless the surface
area of an Integrated SES or Rooftop SES is increased by more than 50% after [the
effective date of this ordinance].

L) NI

Unless otherwise expressly stated herein, an SES shall comply with all applicable federal, state,
and local laws, including the requirements of the Sky Valley zoning ordinance and applicable
International Building Code, National Fire Code, National Electrical Code, and plumbing codes.
If a provision in this ordinance directly conflicts with a requirement of the Sky Valley zoning
ordinance, this ordinance shall control.

2. — Requirements for Solar Energy Systems
(a) Solar Access. Consistent with O.C.G.A §44-9-20 et seq., a property owner may

obtain a solar easement from another property owner for the purpose of ensuring
the Rooftop SES adequate exposure to sunlight provided, however, that the terms
of such easement shall comply with the requirements of the Sky Valley tree
Cutting Ordinance.

(b) Tree Removal. The removal of trees or natural vegetation for a Rooftop SES shall
be avoided to the extent reasonably practicable and shall comply with the
requirements of the Sky Valley Tree Cutting Ordinance.

(c) Height. A rooftop SES shall be given an equivalent exemption, if any, to the
applicable height restrictions for roof-mounted mechanical devices or equipment,
except a Rooftop SES mounted on a slopped roof shall not vertically exceed the
highest point of the roof to which it is attached.

(d) Street Visibility. SES installation on the street-facing side of a sloped roof shall
not be permitted.

(e) Glint or Glare. A rooftop SES shall be constructed of such materials and sited in
such a way that glint or glare from the system will not reflect on a neighboring
building or roadway.

(f) Firefighter Access. The installation of a Rooftop SES shall comply with all
provisions of the National Fire Code and International Building Code with respect
to providing a firefighter clear access to the roof ridge as well as clearance along
the ridge.

23 59



(g) Fire Protection Rating. Rooftop SES components shall meet all UL 1703 fire
safety requirements and carry a fire protection rating of Class B or better.

(h) Wiring Identification. Different power lines must be clearly labeled so that first
responders can identify which lines are connected to the SES.

(i) Disconnection Means. A means of disconnecting the SES must be accessible to
the fire department and must be able to disconnect all conductors of the SES from
other conductors in the building.

(j) Battery. If a storage battery is installed it must include a disconnection means to
isolate it from the rest of the system.

(k) Labeling. All parts of the SES must be labeled so the different components can be
identified.

3. — Ground Mounted Solar Energy Systems
Ground Mounted SESs shall not be permitted within boundaries of Sky Valley.

4. — Permit

The installation of a SES shall require the issuance of a permit from the City of Sky Valley. The

application for the permit shall include the following:

. the address of the property on which the SES will be located;

. the applicant’s name, address, telephone number, and email address;

. the property owner’s name, address, telephone number, and email address;

. the installation company’s name, address, telephone number, email address, license
number and insurance information.

5. payment of an application fee, the amount of which shall be determined by the City of

Sky Valley, and which may change from time to time.

Fu W DN —

5. — Severability
In the event any section, subsection, sentence or word of this ordinance is declared and adjudged

to be invalidated or unconstitutional, such declaration or adjudication shall not affect the
remaining portions of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and effect as if such
portion so declared or adjudged unconstitutional were not originally part of this ordinance. The
city governing authority declared that it would have enacted the remaining parts of this ordinance
if it had known that such portion thereof would be declared or adjudged invalid or

unconstitutional.

24

60



ARTICLE VIII
SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (SF)

Section 801. Single-Family Residential (SF).

Purpose and Intent. The Single Family Residential District (SF) district is intended to

provide for low density residential areas consisting of detached single-family dwellings with
yards and landscaping that provide a desirable and healthy environment. SF districts must be
served by public water. The SF district establishes a maximum density of 1 unit per acte, with a
minimum lot size of one-half acre in areas outside the Mountain Protection Zone and served by
sewer, and a minimum lot size of 1 acre for areas within the Mountain Protection Zone and/or
areas not served by sewer. These districts are to be located in areas shown as single-family
residential on the Sky Valley Land Use District Map.

Section 802. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in Table 2, “Permitted and
Conditional Uses by Land Use District.”

Section 803. Development Standards.

Development Standards shall be as provided in Table 3, “Dimensional Requirements by

Land Use District.”

ARTICLE IX
MIXED RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT (MR)

Section 901. Purpose and Intent.

The Mixed Residential District (MR) district is intended to provide for a range of low to
medium density residential development transitioning from the single-family residential areas to
the higher density resort core, in districts which must be served by public water. These districts
are to be located in transitional areas adjacent to residential neighborhoods and in areas shown as
MR on the Sky Valley Land Use District Map.

Section 902. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

25



Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in Table 2, “Permitted and
Conditional Uses by Land Use District.”

Section 903. Development Standards.

Development Standards shall be as provided in Table 3, “Dimensional Requirements by

Land Use District.”

ARTICLE X
RESORT COMMERCIAL DISTRICT (RC)

Section 1001. Purpose and Intent.

The Resort Commercial District (RC) district is intended to provide suitable areas for the
development of meeting space and accommodations, high and medium density dwelling units,
recreation areas and commercial space in the resort core in districts which must be served by
public water. The overall character of RC district is such that access by both vehicles and
pedestrians are possible and development sites permit larger building lot coverage with minimal
or no side yards. Development within RC district shall have: parking areas in proportion to the
uses, and site development features that ensure a coexistence with the adjacent living
environments. These districts are to be located in areas shown as RC on the Sky Valley Land
Use District Map.

Section 1002. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in Table 2, “Permitted and
Conditional Uses by Land Use District.”

Section 1003. Development Standards.

Development Standards shall be as provided in Table 3, “Dimensional Requirements by

Land Use District.”

26

62



ARTICLE XI
COMMERCIAL AND MUNICIPAL DISTRICT (CM)

Section 1101. Purpose And Intent.

The purpose of the Commercial and Municipal District (CM) is to provide and reserve
suitable areas for operations activities for the City, such as City Hall and offices and other
municipal support activities. This district is also intended to provide areas for commercial and
retail operations. CM districts are only intended to be located in areas with relatively level
topography, and relatively easy access to arterial streets. CM districts must be served by public
water. These districts are to be located in areas shown as Commercial and Municipal on the Sky
Valley Land Use District Map.

Section 1102. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in Table 2, “Permitted and
Conditional Uses by Land Use District.”

Section 1103. Development Standards.

Development Standards shall be as provided in Table 3, “Dimensional Requirements by

Land Use District.”

ARTICLE XII

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT (M)

Section 1201. Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of the Maintenance District (M) district is to provide and reserve suitable
areas for maintenance activities for golf, the City, other support activities, such as laundry and
employee housing/staff accommodations. M districts are only intended to be located in areas
with relatively level topography, and access to arterial streets and/or highways. M districts must
be served by public water. These districts are to be located in areas shown as Maintenance on
the Sky Valley Land Use District Map.

Section 1202. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

27

63



Permitted and conditional uses shall be as provided in Table 2, “Permitted and
Conditional Uses by Land Use District.”

Section 1203. Development Standards.

Development Standards shall be as provided in Table 3, “Dimensional Requirements by

Land Use District.”

ARTICLE XIII
RECREATIONAL DISTRICT (REC)

Section 1301. Purpose and Intent.

The purpose of the Recreational District (REC) is to provide and reserve suitable areas
for active and passive recreation. No dwelling units may be constructed within the REC zone.
REC districts are to be located in areas shown as Recreation on the Sky Valley Land Use District
Map.

Section 1302. Permitted and Conditional Uses.

Permitted and conditional uses shall include parks, trails, amphitheaters, plaza areas,
natural unimproved and planted landscaping, open space, golf, play fields, bathrooms and kiosks,
clubhouse facilities, golf amenities including restaurants within the clubhouse or restaurants

within recreational facilities and other support recreation activities.

Table 2
Permitted and Conditional Uses by Land Use District

The following table shows uses that are permitted (P), conditionally permitted (C), and not permitted

principal uses

(prohibited) (X).
USE DESCRIPTION SF MR RC CM M
Accessory uses and structures not otherwise listed in
this table, normally incidental to one or more permitted C C C C C

Active recreational facilities, such as tennis courts and

swimming pools, as principal uses or as accessory to P P )¢ X X
one or more permitted uses

Agriculture production for home consumption P X X X X
Apartment building X X X X X
Bed and breakfast inns X @ s X X
Cemeteries X X X X X

28

64



Churches, temples, synagogues, and places of worship,
. . . X C C X X
including cemeteries as accessory uses
Commercial recreational facility, indoor X C P X X
Commercial recreational facility, outdoor X X P X X
Conference centers and retreat centers X X p X X
Conser.vanon areas, open space and passive p p p p p
recreational facilities
Country clubs, including golf courses and clubhouses

. C C P X X
with restaurants and golf pro shops as accessory uses
Day care centers serving more than six persons X X C X X
Dwellings, single-family detached P C C X X
Dwellings, single-family attached (townhouses) X P P X X
Dwellings, two-family (duplexes) X P C X X
Dwellings, multifamily (condominiums) X P P X X
D\_)vel.hngs, located within a building containing another X % p % p
principal use
Employee Housing and Staff Accommodations X P P X P
Entry sign/statement into City (Max two per entrance) P P P P C
Extraction 1n§ustrles - extr?lctlon and removal of sand, % X % X X
gravel, top soil, clay, and dirt
Finance, insurance and real estate establishments, less
than 3,500 square feet of gross floor area per X X p X X
establishment
Health services, clinics X X C X X
Health Spas and/or Fitness Club X C P X X
Home occupations P p P X X
Lockout Units X p p X X
Lodging services X p p p X

Table 2
Permitted and Conditional Uses by Land Use District
The following table shows uses that are permitted (P), conditionally permitted (C), and not permitted

(prohibited) (X).

USE DESCRIPTION SF MR RC CM M
Manufactured homes X C X X X
Municipal Offices, City Hall and City Services X X P p X
Offices X X P P X
Public and semi-public uses X P P P P
Recycling centers, collection points X X X P P
Rental of dwelling units:

Long-term rentals (7 days or more) P p P X p

Nightly rentals (less than 7 days) P | P X X
Restaurants, including outside seating areas but not % % p p %
including drive-ins or drive-through facilities

29




Retail trade establishments, enclosed, not exceeding % X p p X
2,500 square feet of gross floor area

Solar Energy Systems (SES) P C C C C
Retail trade establishments, enclosed, exceeding 2,500 X X p p e
square feet of gross floor area

Subdivision Entry/Identification Sign C C C X X
Temporary structures and uses approved by the City

Council after recommendation by the Planning and C C C C C
Zoning Commission

Warehouses and storage buildings X X X P P
Uses not specified in this table (2) (2) 2) (2) (2)

(1) Manufactured homes are only permitted in manufactured home parks. Manufactured home

parks are allowed in the manufactured home park district subject to the meeting the requirements

for establishing a manufactured home park.

(2) In cases where a use is proposed but is not listed in this table, the City Council after

recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission shall make a determination at a

public hearing as to whether or not the use is permitted in the Land Use District or districts in

question. The City Council may determine that such use is substantially similar to a permitted

use and allow that use to be permitted. The City Council may determine that such use is

substantially similar to a conditional use, and permit that use as a conditional use. The City

Council may determine that such use is prohibited altogether in the use district or districts in

question. In making such determinations, the City Council shall consult the purpose and intent

statements of the Land Use District or districts in question, in addition to comparing the use in

question to uses specifically listed in this table.

Table 3
Dimensional Requirements by Land Use District
DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS SF MR RC CM M
60 feet
. " Limited to
Maximum Height 40 feet 45 feet 35 feet 40 feet
no more
than 4 floors
Maximum Density:
Maximum Density outside the 1 unit 18 units per 20 units per
Mountain Protection Zone served by | per acre | acre, but not o p NA NA
water and sewer to exceed on
30 66




Maximum density for areas outside
the Mountain Protection Zone not
served by water and sewer (must have
approved septic from Dept. Health)

Maximum density for areas within
the Mountain Protection Zone served
by public water and sewer

Maximum density for areas within
the Mountain Protection Zone not
served by public water and sewer
(must have approved septic from
Dept. Health)

the average 10
units per acre
The density
requirements
herein do not
include units,
existing or

under
permitted
construction,
as of the
adoption of
this
ordinance.
6 units per 6 units per
acre acre
6 units per 6 units per
acre acre
4 units per 4 units per
acre acre

No portion of a building pad can be located on

ground over 35 % slope.

Table 3
Dimensional Requirements by Land Use District
DIMENSIONAL REQUIREMENTS SF MR | RC CM M
Minimum Lot Size:
6,000 s.f. for
Minimum lot size for areas outside of ;na%ac:ed singlfe- See Lot Width and 20.000
Mountain Protection Zone served by | 1/2 acre | jomiyhomes U | Setbacksbelow | 12 500 s.f. of
sewer Width and Setbacks o
below)
Minimum lot size for areas within
Mountain Protection Zone and/or not 1 acre
served by sewer
Minimum Lot Width:
Minimum lot width for areas outside of gf?olrifoaft 50 |.f at front of 25 LE at front of
Mountain Protection Zone building pad building pad building pad 100 | £ at front lggrl]-tf:flt
Minimum lot width for areas within the lggrlltf;)?t 100 L.f at frontof | 100 L at frontof | °FPUildingpad | 4 i ding pad
Mountain Protection Zone Bl o building pad building pad
Minimum Yard Setback
Front yard 15 15 15 (D) 30 (B)
Rear yard 15 15 (A) 15 (A) 20 (A) 20 (B)
31 67




Side yard 15 15 (A) | 15 (A) 20 (A) | 20 (B)
o~ I . . . 1,750 fis.f. 1,200 fs.f. total for unattached single-
Minimum Unit Size (for residential units total for family homes, 1,000 £s.£. total for 2 Not Applicabl
only): single-family | bedroom and 1,200 fs.f total for 3 bedroom ot Applicable
) homes + for townhomes and condos.
Minimum Open Space: NA 50% ] 40% 50% | 30%
*** Apbreviations S.f=.square feet, L.[. = lineal feet, r-o-w = right-of-way, f.s.f. = Finished square feet ‘

YARD SETBACK NOTE:

(A)  Where a lot abuts any residential district there shall be a side or rear yard
clearance of at least seventy-five (75) feet on the side and/or rear yard abutting the residential

district.

(B)  Upon any front, rear, and side lot line which abuts a residential district there shall
be a densely planted buffer strip at least six (6) feet in height and ten (10) feet in width along the
front, rear and side lot line abutting the residential properties. No such buffer shall however,
extend nearer to a street right-of-way than the established building line of the adjoining

residential lot.

(C)  Corner lots must meet front yard setbacks from all rights of way.

(D)  From the common right of way the setback for parking shall be ten (10) feet. The
setback for the building shall be forty (40) feet.

TABLE 3 DIMENSIONAL NOTES:

(D All setbacks are to be measured from road right-of-way and not from the center

line of the road.

(2) Unroofed platforms, terraces, steps, landings, balconies, cornices, sills, eaves,
chimneys or other similar architectural features are to be considered a part of the structure for
purposes of compliance with this definition.

3) Standard overhangs, not to exceed two (2) feet as measured from the wall, will be
excluded and not considered a part of the structure for purposes of compliance with this

definition.

4) The minimum setback requirement shall not apply to side or rear yard property
lines which adjoin or abut the Corps of Engineers’ or the United States Forest Services’
jurisdiction, provided that the owner’s sewage treatment system is located wholly on private
property or is otherwise permitted by the Rabun County Health Department and the City Council

of Sky Valley.

(5) The front yard setback requirements of this Ordinance for structures shall not
apply to any lot where the average setback of existing structures located wholly or partially
within one hundred (100) feet on either side of the proposed structure and on the same side of the

32

68




same block and use district and fronting on the same street as such lot, is less than the minimum
required front yard depth. In such case the setback on such lots may be less than the required
setback, but not less than the average of the existing setbacks on the aforementioned lots, or a
distance of ten (10) feet from the street right-of-way line, whichever is greater.

(6) Height: The vertical distance measured parallel from the grade at the designated
front door to the highest point of the coping of a flat roof; to the deck lines of a mansard roof; or
to the mean height level between the eaves and ridge of a gable or hip roof. Max height does not
pertain to chimneys, venting, church steeples, and other appurtenances that do not contain
dwelling space; however these aspects will be reviewed by City Council with final height
decision by the Council.

(7N Open space: Open Space includes undeveloped natural areas, landscaped areas,
parks, playgrounds, pocket parks, plazas, courtyards and other public spaces.

(®) Building Area and Building Pad: The buildable area is the three (3) dimensional
space within which a structure is permitted to be built on a lot and which is defined by maximum
height regulations, yard setbacks and building coverage. The building pad is the actual
foundation area of a building and reasonable area around the foundation necessary for
construction and grade transitions.

ARTICLE XIV
MANUFACTURED HOME PARK

Section 1401. Purpose.

This ordinance regulates mobile home parks, manufactured home parks, and recreational
vehicle and travel trailer parks and campgrounds, which provide for affordable permanent and
temporary housing or seasonal recreational developments. Manufactured home parks are
intended to provide for the leasing of spaces for the placement of manufactured homes, owned or
rented by tenants, as well as spaces or camp sites for recreational vehicles, within a planned
residential community, park, or campground. A manufactured home park is different from a
residential subdivision in that the individual spaces for manufactured homes, campsites, or
recreational vehicles are leased rather than platted and sold. By requiring less land per home or
vehicle space, manufactured home parks are built at densities greater than those for other
detached dwellings. Service facilities such as laundry and leasing office are often planned and

provided as a part of the park development.

Section 1402. Definitions.

(O8]
[F8)

69



Accessory building: A building subordinate to the main building on a lot or space and used for

purposes customarily incidental to those of the main building or use.

Active recreational facilities: Equipment and areas prepared for active use for recreational and

leisure purposes, including but not limited to: playground equipment (swing sets and climbing
structures); courts for basketball, volleyball, and tennis; leveled, striped fields for football,
soccer, or all-purpose fields; community picnic pavilion (including covered facilities with grills
and/or fire pits); and community buildings for recreational events. Trails and bikeways through

open spaces shall not be considered active recreational facilities.

Manufactured home (mobile home): A structure, transportable in one or more sections which, in

the traveling mode is eight body feet or more in width or 40 body feet or more in length; when
erected on site, is 320 or more square feet in floor area, and which is built on a permanent chassis
and designed to be used as a dwelling with or without a permanent foundation when connected to
the required utilities, and includes the plumbing, heating, air-conditioning, and electrical systems
contained therein; or a structure that otherwise comes within the definition of a “manufactured
home” under the National Manufactured Housing Construction and Safety Standards Act of

1974, as amended (42 U.S.C. 5401-5445).

Manufactured home park: Any property on which three or more manufactured homes,

recreational vehicles, or combination thereof are located or intended to be located for purposes of
residential or recreational occupancy of a temporary, seasonal, or permanent nature. A
campground designed to serve recreational vehicles is also included in this definition.

Manufactured home space: An area within a manufactured home park, distinguished from a lot

in a subdivision under fee-simple ownership, upon which a single manufactured home or
recreational vehicle is or may be placed. If designed for seasonal or permanent occupancy, a

manufactured home space may provide area and be used for storing the belongings of the

occupant.

Recreational vehicle: A vehicular-type, portable structure without a permanent foundation that

can be towed, hauled, or driven and is primarily designed as a temporary living accommodation
for recreational, camping, and travel use which includes, but is not limited to, travel trailers,

truck campers, camping trailers, and self propelled motor homes.

Section 1403. Site Plan Review and Land Use Permit Required.

34



No manufactured home park shall be developed until and unless a site plan shall have
been approved by the City of Sky Valley, and a land use permit issued by the City of Sky Valley.
The City of Sky Valley shall not issue a land use permit for a manufactured home park unless it

is in conformity with all the provisions of this ordinance.
Section 1404. Site Conditions and Site Planning.

Section 1404.1 Site Conditions. Manufactured home parks shall be sited on land that is

not subject to hazards such as flooding, erosion, land subsidence, and areas with possible insect
or rodent infestation. The condition of the soil, ground water level, drainage, rock formations,
and topography shall be appropriate for the use to ensure that no hazards to the property or to the

health and safety of the occupants occurs.

Section 1404.2. Site Planning.

Planning for the manufacturing home park should be adapted to individual site conditions
and the type of use or uses served, reflect advances in site planning techniques, and be adapted to
the trends in the design of the manufactured home or recreational vehicle itself. Site planning and
improvements shall: provide for facilities and amenities appropriate to the needs of the
occupants; safe, comfortable, and sanitary use by the occupants under all weather conditions; and
practical and efficient operation and maintenance of all facilities at reasonable costs. The street
and block pattern for the park shall be designed to attain proper sizes and shapes of manufactured
home spaces so as to provide desirable areas and to reduce excessive length of street construction

without impairing convenient circulation and access.

Section 1405. General Development Requirements.

Manufactured home parks shall meet the following requirements:

Section 1405.1. Site Frontage, Access. and Minimum Width.

Properties containing manufactured home parks shall have a minimum of 200 feet of
property frontage on a public street, and direct vehicular access to the manufactured home park
shall be provided by means of an abutting public street with at least 200 feet of property
frontage. The manufactured home park shall have a minimum lot width of 200 feet throughout

the entire depth of the developed portion of the property.

35

71



Section 1405.2 Perimeter Buffer or Landscape Screen.

A minimum 20 foot wide buffer, where natural vegetation exists and provides a more or
less opaque screen; or, where no natural vegetation forming an opaque screen exists, a minimum
20 foot wide landscape strip with evergreen trees that will grow to a height of at least six feet
within three years shall be installed and maintained around the entire perimeter of the

development, except for approved access and utility crossings.

Section 1405.4. Open Space and Recreational Areas.

A minimum of 20 percent of the site area shall be open space and recreational area,
including the required perimeter buffer or landscape screen. A minimum of eight percent of the
total site area, counted as part of the required 20 percent site area that is open space and

recreation area, shall be devoted to one or more active recreation facilities.

Section 1405.4. Community Services.

As part of the site plan review process, the developer may propose and the City may
approve one or more other structures for manufactured home park occupants, such as laundries,
storage, garages, and a park leasing or management office. Any structure that draws its trade

from outside the park boundaries is prohibited.

Section 1405.5. Interior Access Roads. Addresses. and Signing.

The road system within the manufactured home park shall be designed to meet the

requirements of all emergency services and the traveling public to include the following:

(2) All interior roads shall be private but constructed to provide fire apparatus access

and paved.

(b) One-way interior roads shall be constructed with a minimum surface width of 14

feet, and shall be designated “no parking.”

() Two-way interior roads shall be constructed with a minimum surface width of 24

feet, and shall be designated “no parking.”

(d) Interior roads shall be clearly marked at each intersection with signs to identify

traffic directions and space numbers served by the road.

36

72



(e) Driveways shall be provided on the site where necessary for convenient access to
service entrances of buildings, to delivery and collection points for refuse and

other material, and elsewhere as needed.

Section 1405.6. Guest Parking.

In addition to on-site parking, guest parking spaces shall be provided as part of the
development, at a ratio of one parking space per each six manufactured home spaces. Guest

parking spaces shall be grouped and distributed evenly throughout the manufactured home park.

Section 1405.7. Utilities.

All manufactured home parks, and each manufactured home space within the park, shall
be served by approved public water and public sanitary sewer or community sewerage system,

and electricity. All utilities shall be installed underground with above ground connections.

Section 1405.8. Drainage.

Drainage facilities shall be designed by an engineer and are subject to the approval of the

City of Sky Valley as part of the site plan review process.

Section 1405.9. Refuse Collection.

Each manufactured home park shall provide refuse collection pads at locations

convenient to each manufactured home space.

Section 1405.10. Park Rules.

The property owner or manager shall submit operating rules and regulations governing

the park to the City of Sky Valley prior to occupancy.

Section 1406. Requirements for Manufactured Home Spaces.

Section 1406.1 Design. Each manufactured home space shall be designed and

constructed at such elevation, distance, and angle with respect to its access to provide for safe
and efficient placement and removal of manufactured homes or recreational vehicles, as the case
may be. Each manufactured home space shall be designed with no more than a five- percent
gradient and compacted with appropriate material to support maximum anticipated loads during

all seasons.

37

73



Section 1406.2. Width. Depth. and Size of Spaces and Markings.

Each manufactured home space shall be at least 40 feet wide and 75 feet in depth. The
minimum area for a manufactured home space shall be 3,000 square feet. The corners of each
manufactured home space shall be clearly marked on the ground by permanent flush stakes,

makers, or by other similar means.

Section 1406.3. Stands.

Each manufactured home space shall be provided with a concrete pad of sufficient size to
accommodate the typical manufactured home to be located within that space, and the pad should
be large enough to accommodate a patio of at least 180 square feet and also provide for the
anchoring of the home to secure it against movement; provided, however, that any individual
stand shall be no less than 14 feet by 60 feet and spaces intended to serve double-wide homes

shall be at least 24 feet by 60 feet.

Section 1406.4. Use of Spaces.

No more than one manufactured home or recreational vehicle shall occupy any individual
space. Use of a mobile home shall not be permitted in the manufactured home park. Accessory
uses and structures on individual spaces may be permitted, subject to compliance with the

development standards provided in this ordinance.

Section 1406.5. Space Identification Numbers.

Manufactured home space numbers at least four inches in height shall identify each space

and shall remain readily identifiable while in use.

Section 1406.6. Parking.

Two on-site parking spaces shall be provided on each manufactured home space or

immediately off-site.

Section 1406.7. Walkways.

A walkway at least two feet wide must be provided from each individual space to connect

the manufactured home with the common walk or street.

Section 1406.8. Setbacks.

38 74



No manufactured home shall be located closer than five feet to a manufactured home
space boundary, and spaces shall be designed to provide for a minimum of 15 feet of separation

between manufactured homes on abutting spaces.

Section 1406-9, Additions and Accessory Structures.

Decks, porches, outdoor storage, or other exterior additions may be constructed or erected on a
manufactured home space, subject to the approval of the manufactured home park management.
No such accessory structure shall be located closer than five feet to a manufactured home space

boundary.

Section 1406.10. Maximum Density.

The total number of spaces and total number of manufactured homes or recreational
vehicles within the manufactured home park shall not exceed 10 homes or vehicles or

combination thereof per acre.

ARTICLE XV
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

Section 1501. Creation and Appointment.

The Planning and Zoning Commission for the City of Sky Valley is hereby created. The
Planning and Zoning Commission as it exists at the time of the adoption of this Ordinance will
continue serving subject to elections as provided herein. The Planning and Zoning Commission
shall be composed of five (5) members appointed by the City of Sky Valley in such a manner as
hereinafter provided. Three (3) members present shall be required to constitute a quorum. One
(1) such member shall be annually elected chairman of the Planning and Zoning Commission by
the Planning and Zoning Commission members. All members appointed to the Planning and
Zoning Commission shall be residents of the City. The members shall serve concurrent terms of
three (3) years and shall serve until their successors are appointed. The compensation of the
members of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be as established by the City of Sky
Valley. Any vacancy in the membership of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall be filled
for the unexpired term of such vacancy in the same manner as the original appointment. The City

of Sky Valley may remove any member of the Planning and Zoning Commission for due cause

39



after written notice to such member and after a public hearing. Members of the Planning and
Zoning Commission shall appoint a secretary, or in lieu of such appointment, the City Clerk shall

serve as the secretary of the Planning and Zoning Commission

Section 1502. Meetings and Records.

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall meet at the call of the chairman, or at such
other times as the Planning and Zoning Commission may determine, and all such meetings shall
be open to the public. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall adopt rules for the transaction
of business, or in lieu of such rules, the Commission shall follow “Robert’s Rules of Order,”
latest edition. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall keep record of its resolutions,
recommendations, transactions, findings, and determinations, and all such records shall be public

record and available for purchase by interested parties at a reasonable cost.

Section 1503. Powers and Duties.

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall have the following functions, powers and

duties:

Ls Prepare and recommend for adoption by the City of Sky Valley zoning
regulations, zoning amendments, subdivision regulations and other such land use
regulations; prepare and recommend for adoption by the City of Sky Valley
amendments to any of the land use regulations; and to review and make
recommendations concerning applications for zoning map amendment, special

exception approvals, variances, conditional zoning, or other such applications.

. Perform other planning functions and duties as may be required by the City of

Sky Valley.

ARTICLE XVI

ZONING APPEALS

Section 1601. Creation and Appointment.

40

76



The City Council of Sky Valley shall serve as the Board of Zoning Appeals. The Board
of Zoning Appeals shall perform all of its duties and exercise all of its powers in such a way that
the purpose and intent of the zoning regulations shall be accomplished, public health, safety and

welfare secured, and substantial justice done.

Section 1602. Appeals.

The Board is empowered to hear and decide appeals where it is alleged there is an error
in any order, requirement, decision or determination made by the City Manager, Building

Inspector, or City Engineer in the interpretation or enforcement of these zoning regulations.

The Board is empowered to hear an appeal made by any person, firm, or corporation, or
by any officer, department, board, or bureau affected by any decision of the Planning and Zoning

Commission, Building Official or other employee based on the zoning regulations.

Such appeal shall be taken within sixty (60) days, or as provided by the rules of the
Board, by filing with the City Clerk notice of appeal specifying the grounds thereof. All papers
constituting the record upon which the action appealed from was taken shall forthwith be

transmitted to the Board of Zoning Appeals.

The Board shall select a reasonable time and place for the hearing of the appeal and give
at least fifteen (15) days of public notice thereof and due notice to the parties in interest and shall

render a decision on the appeal within a reasonable time.

Section 1603. Determination of District Boundaries.

The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have original jurisdiction to, upon application,
determine the location of a particular district boundary in question as specified in Section 404 of

these regulations.

Section 1604. Variances.

The Board of Zoning Appeals is hereby empowered to authorize upon application in
specific cases such variance from the terms of these regulations as will not be contrary to the
public interest where, owing to special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of these
regulations will in an individual case, result in unnecessary hardship, so that the spirit of these
regulations shall be observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done.

The existence of a non-conforming use of neighboring land, buildings or structures in the same

41



zoning district or of permitted or non-conforming uses in other districts shall not constitute a

reason for the requested variance. A variance may be granted in an individual case of

unnecessary hardship, after appropriate application in accordance with Article XVII, upon

specific findings that all of the following conditions exist. The absence of any one (1) of the

conditions shall be grounds for denial of the application for variance.

1.

There are extraordinary and exceptional conditions pertaining to the particular
piece of property in question because of its size, shape or topography that are not

applicable to other land or structures in the same district; and

A literal interpretation of the provisions of these zoning regulations would create
an unnecessary hardship and would deprive the applicant of rights commonly
enjoyed by other property owners within the district in which the property is

located; and

Granting the variance requested will not confer upon the property of the applicant
any special privileges that are denied to other properties of the district in which

the applicant’s property is located; and

Relief, if granted, will be in harmony with the purpose and intent of these
regulations and will not be injurious to the neighborhood or general welfare in
such a manner as will interfere with or discourage the appropriate development

and use of adjacent land and buildings or unreasonable affect their value; and
The special circumstances are not the result of the actions of the applicant; and

The variance requested is the minimum variance that will make possible the legal

use of the land, building, or structure; and

The variance is not a request to permit a use of land, building or structures which

are not permitted by right in the district involved.

Applications for variances in all zoning districts shall require review and

recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Section 1605. Conditional Approval Permitted.

42

78



In exercising the powers to grant appeals and approve variances, the City of Sky Valley
may attach any conditions to its approval which it finds necessary to accomplish the reasonable

application of the requirements of these regulations.

In exercising its powers, the City of Sky Valley may, in conformity with the provisions of
these regulations, reverse or affirm, wholly or partly, or may modify the order, requirement,
decision or determination, and to that end shall have all of the powers of the Building Inspector,
City Manager, or City Engineer and may issue or direct the issuance of a permit. The concurring
vote of three (3) members of the Board shall be necessary to reverse any order, requirement,

decision or determination of the Building Inspector, City Manager, or City Engineer.

Section 1606. Approval Period Limited.

No order of the Board permitting the erection or alteration of a building or other variance
shall be valid for a period of longer than six (6) months unless such use is established within
such period; provided, however that such order by the Board shall continue in force and effect if
a building permit for said erection or alteration is obtained within such period, and such erection

or alteration is started and proceeds to completion in accordance with such permit.

Section 1607. Application. Hearings and Notice.

Applications for variance shall be made in accordance with all applicable provisions of

Article XVII.

ARTICLE XVII
AMENDMENT, APPLICATION AND PROCEDURAL REQUIREMENTS

Section 1701. Authority to Amend.

The City of Sky Valley may from time to time amend the number, shape, boundary or
area of any district, or may amend any regulation pertaining to any district; or may amend any
Atrticle or Section of these regulations. The procedure for amending these regulations shall be as

provided in this Article and as otherwise provided by law.

Section 1702. Initiation of Zoning Amendments.

43 79



Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, procedures for any zoning decision in the
City of Sky Valley will be governed by the Zoning Procedures Law of the State of Georgia
(0.C.G.A. §36-66-1, et seq.) as the same currently exists or may be amended and said Zoning

Procedures Law is hereby adopted by reference.

Section 1703. Withdrawal of Amendment Application.

Any petition for any amendment to the zoning regulations, official zoning map, special
exception approval, or variance may be withdrawn, at the discretion of the person or agency
initiating such a request, at any time prior to final action by the City of Sky Valley upon written
notice. Any required application fees shall be refunded to the applicant only if such application

has not been prepared and submitted for advertisement.

Section 1704. Application Requirements.

All applications for any amendment to this Zoning Ordinance to specifically include an
amendment otherwise defined as a “zoning decision” will be on such forms and contain such
information as required by the City of Sky Valley. The City of Sky Valley will establish, from
time to time, rules and requirements, to include administrative costs, for amendments and

variances to the zoning ordinance.

Section 1705. Site Plan Requirements.

All site plans required by this ordinance shall, at a minimum, contain the following

information:

1. Title of the proposed development and the name, address and telephone number
of the property owner.

2. The name, address and telephone number of the architect, engineer or other
designer of the proposed development.

3. Scale, date, north arrow, and general location map showing relationship of the site
to streets or natural landmarks.

4. Boundaries of the subject property, all existing and proposed streets, including

right-of-way and street pavement widths; structures; water courses; parking and

44

80



Sr

loading areas; driveways; retaining walls; and other physical characteristics of the

property and proposed development. Any and all items to be constructed shall be
shown on the site plan.

Building setbacks, buffers, landscape strips, and tree protection zone.

Section 1706. Criteria to Consider for Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance.

The applicant, staff, Planning and Zoning Commission and the City of Sky Valley should

review an application for zoning amendments with regard to the following criteria:

1.

2.

10.

The existing land use pattern;

The possible creation of an isolated district unrelated to adjacent and nearby
districts;
The population density pattern and possible increase or overtaxing of the load on

public facilities including utilities and streets;

The cost of the local government in providing, improving, increasing or

maintaining public utilities, streets and public safety measures;

Impact on the environment, including, but not limited to, drainage, soil erosion

and sedimentation, flooding, air quality and water quality and quantity;

Whether the proposed change will be a deterrent to the value or improvement of

development of adjacent property in accordance with existing regulations;

Whether there are substantial reasons why the property cannot be used in

accordance with existing zoning;

The aesthetic effect of existing and future use of the property as it relates to the

surrounding area;

The extent to which the zoning decision is consistent with the comprehensive plan

of the local government;

Any other factors relevant to the balancing interest in promoting the public health,

safety, morality or general welfare against a right to unrestricted use of property.

Section 1707. Criteria to Consider for Special Exception Uses.

45

81



The applicant, staff, Planning and Zoning Commission and the City of Sky Valley should

review applications for special exception uses with regard to the following criteria:

1. Off-street parking and loading facilities are adequate in terms of location, amount,

and design to serve the use.

2 The number, size and type of signs proposed are compatible with the surrounding
area.
3. The amount and location of open space and the provision of screening is such that

buffering of incompatible uses is achieved.

4, Ingress and egress to the property is suitable and safe, and the effect of the

proposed activity on traffic flow along adjoining streets is not adverse.

5. The location and intensity of outdoor lighting is such that it does not cast light on

adjacent, adjoining or neighboring properties.

6. Hours and manner of operation of the proposed use are not inconsistent with

adjacent and nearby uses.
7. Public facilities and utilities are capable of adequately serving the proposed use.

8. The proposed use will not have a significant adverse effect on the level of

property values or the general character of adjacent land uses or the general area.

9. The physical conditions of the site, including size, shape, topography and

drainage, are suitable for the proposed development.

10. The proposed use is consistent with the goals and objectives of the

Comprehensive Plan of the City of Sky Valley.

The Planning and Zoning Commission and the City of Sky Valley may consider other
factors deemed relevant before formulating recommendations and taking action on a particular

special exception application.

Section 1708. Recommendation by City Manager.

The City Manager after consultation with the Building Inspector will, as appropriate,

customarily submit to the Planning and Zoning Commission and/or the City of Sky Valley, prior

46 82



to a scheduled public hearing, copies of the site plan and letter of intent along with a written
recommendation for approval, disapproval, deferral, withdrawal or other recommendation. Said
recommendation shall include reasons for said recommendations, considered within the context
of the appropriate criteria as specified by these regulations. The recommendations of the City
Manager shall have an advisory effect only and shall not be binding on the Planning and Zoning
Commission or the City of Sky Valley. Copies of the City Manager’s recommendations shall be
made available to the applicant and other interested parties upon completion and distribution to

the appropriate bodies and at the public hearing.

Section 1709. Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation.

Prior to the public hearing held by the City of Sky Valley, the Planning and Zoning
Commission shall hold a public hearing on all applications for amendment to the text of the
zoning regulations, amendments to the official zoning map, special exception permit
applications, petitions for alteration or extension of conditional zoning, request for development
plan approval for site plan approval, variances, or other actions that may ultimately lead to a
zoning decision as defined by O.C.G.A. §36-66-3(4) as the same currently exists or as may be

amended.

After completing its studies of the particular petition, the Planning and Zoning
Commission shall submit a recommended action in writing to the City of Sky Valley. The
Planning and Zoning Commission may submit any additional report it deems appropriate. The
recommendations of the Planning and Zoning Commission shall have an advisory effect only
and shall not be binding on the City of Sky Valley. Copies of the Planning and Zoning
Commission’s recommendations and reports shall be made available to the applicant and other
interest parties upon completion and distribution to the City of Sky Valley and at the public

hearing before the City of Sky Valley.

The Planning and Zoning Commission shall have thirty (30) days within which to submit
its recommendations. The City of Sky Valley shall not take action on any of said applications,
until it has received the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Commission within the
specified time period. If the Planning and Zoning Commission fails to submit a recommendation

within the thirty (30) day period, it shall be deemed to have approved the proposed application.

Section 1710. Conduct of Public Hearings.

47



All public hearings regarding applications considered by the Planning and Zoning
Commission and the City of Sky Valley shall be held in accordance with procedures adopted by
the City of Sky Valley and the law of Georgia.

ARTICLE XVIII
ADMINISTRATION, INTERPRETATION, ENFORCEMENT,
PENALTIES AND REMEDIES

Section 1801. Administration and Interpretation.

The provisions of this ordinance shall be administered by the City Manager. The City
Manager shall be responsible for interpretation of the provisions of these regulations and for

maintenance of the official zoning map.

Section 1802. Enforcement.

The provisions of these regulations shall be enforced by the Building Inspector and City

Manager.

Section 1803. Development Permit Required.

A development permit shall be required for any proposed use of land(s) or structure(s) to
indicate and insure compliance with all provisions of these regulations before any building
permit is issued or any improvement, grading, tree cutting, land disturbing activity or alteration
of land(s) or structure(s) commences; provided, however, that development permits for
individual structures within approved single-family residential subdivisions or for single-family
dwelling units on individual lots shall not be required. Approval of a preliminary plat in
accordance with all applicable provisions of the Subdivision Regulations shall constitute
approval of the development permit for each subdivision or condominium development as

specified in these regulations shall constitute approval of a development permit.

All development permits shall be issued by the Building Inspector only after prior
approval by the City Manager, who shall in no case approve a development permit for the use,
construction, or alteration of any land or structure if the land or structure as proposed to be used,

constructed or altered would be in violation of any of the provisions of these regulations or any

48

84



other codes and laws. Development permits shall be valid for two (2) years from its issuance. If
work described in any development permit has not begun within one hundred twenty (120) days
from the date of issuance thereof, said permit shall expire, and further work shall not proceed

until a new development permit has been obtained.

Section 1804. Building Permit Required.

No structure or sign, except as specifically exempted by these regulations, shall be
erected, moved, extended, enlarged or structurally altered, nor shall any excavation or filling of
any lot for the construction of any structure be commenced until the Building Inspector has

issued a building permit for such work in conformity with the provisions of these regulations.

All building permits shall be issued by the Building Inspector. In cases of uncertainty
regarding whether a proposed structure or structure conforms to any provisions within these
regulations, the Building Inspector shall consult with the City Manager for his interpretation and
ruling. Building permits shall become invalid unless the work authorized by it shall have been
commenced within ninety (90) days of its date of issue, or if the work authorized by it is

suspended or abandoned for a period of three (3) months or more.

Section 1805. Certificate of Occupancy Required.

A Certificate of Occupancy issued by the Building Inspector is required in advance of
occupancy or use of any lot or change or extension in the use of any lot; any structure hereafter

erected; or any change in the use of an existing structure.

All Certificates of Occupancy shall be issued by the Building Inspector, and no such
Certificate shall be issued unless the proposed use of a structure or land conforms to the
applicable provisions of these regulations and all applicable codes. Businesses shall conform to
the regulations of the district in which it is located and a valid Certificate of Occupancy must be

obtained from the City of Sky Valley before any business activities can commence.

Section 1806. Penalties for Violation.

Any person, firm or corporation violating, neglecting or refusing to comply with any of
the provisions of this ordinance shall be subject to fines and other penalties and/or punishment as

authorized by the Code of Ordinances of the City of Sky Valley.

Section 1807. Remedies.

49

85



In case any structure is or is proposed to be erected, constructed, reconstructed, altered,
converted or maintained, or any building structure or land is or is proposed to be used in
violation of any provision of these regulations, the Building Inspector, City Manager or any other
appropriate authority may, in addition to other remedies, and after due notice to the owner of the
violation, issue a citation for violation of these regulations requiring the presence of the violator
in the court of proper jurisdiction; institute injunction, or other appropriate action or proceeding
to prevent such unlawful erection, construction, reconstruction, alteration, convetsion,
maintenance or use to correct or abate such violation or to prevent the occupancy of such
building, structure or land. Where a violation of these regulations exists with respect to a
structure or land, the Building Inspector may, in addition to other remedies, require that utility
service be withheld therefrom until such time as the structure or premises is no longer in

violation of these regulations.

ARTICLE XIX
LEGAL STATUS PROVISIONS

Section 1901. Conflict With Other Laws.

Whenever the provisions of this ordinance impose more restrictive standards than are
required in or under any other statute, the provisions of this ordinance shall govern. Whenever
the provisions of any other statute require more restrictive standards than are required by this

ordinance, the provisions of such statute shall govern.

Section 1902. Separability.

Should any Article, Section or provision of this ordinance be declared invalid or
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such declarations shall not affect the
validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part thereof which is not specifically declared to be

invalid or unconstitutional.

Section 1903. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances.

All ordinances and resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are repealed.

Section 1904. Effective Date.

50

86



This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption by the City Council and approval

by the Mayor as provided by the Charter of the City of Sky Valley.

It is so ordained and approved by vote of the City Council of the City of Sky Valley this
day of ,2024.

Approved:

Hollie Steil, Mayor

William Oliver, Council President

Tony Allred, Councilor

Jim Curtis, Councilor

Dan McAfee, Councilor

Bruce Turner, Councilor

Attest:

Karen Fleming, City Clerk Doug Kidd, City Attorney
1" Reading and introduction: day of .2024.

2" Reading and adoption: day of .2024.

51

87



- 5 IKiyhot
NELSON s v 4 A
A P.O. Box 1999 2934 West Highway 515

TRACTOR COMPANY, INC. Blairsville, GA 30514 Blairsville, GA 30512 \"’
PHONE: (706) 745-2148 FAX: (706) 745-7225 \ ‘
INTI RN 10N Peffezernce EWHOLLAM
DATE: [/2/2024) lovernaesT Distosat
i ML L
nave:_SKe Valley (C.fy of SKo Valles )
7 7 = * 7 > ,

ADDRESS: Cody éaj/.;L
CITY: STATE:
ZIP: PHONE: 206 ¥ §0-80€7

——————————————————————————————————————————

_Kubote, KXOS57 —SR3IAP cas/énjfc Tide eline (3 77,6602
Kahotn @usel Cowpler

[febot= //?dft«-flc 7 Aumh

Labota 247 QA [Suket




JAMES SHORT TRACTORS & EQUIPMENT

OF ALTO, INC. |
1325 State Hv:y 365 <lJ b’)l’Q. !
Alto, GA 30510
Phone: (706) 778-9000 « Fax (706) 778-9006
Quote: 20502.01 CITY OF SKY VALLEY Customer: 93037
Created: 01/02/2025 3444 HWY 246 Phone: 706-746-2204
Expires: 02/02/2025 DILLARD GA 30537 Cell: 706-490-8068
Salesperson: JNK page 1
Unit Sale: 2025 KUB KX057-5R3A EXCAVATOR 73729.00

stock number: TEMP

INCLUDES: ENCLOSED CAB, ANGLE BLADE, QUICK COUPLER

HYDRAULIC THUMB, 24" BUCKET
Sales Tax $0.00

THANK YOU FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO EARN YOUR BUSINESS Total Sale $73729.00

89



DEALERSHIP PHYSICAL:
1674 APPALACHIAN HWY
BLUE RIDGE, GA 30513

PH: 706 232 8962
FAX : 706 232 1531

of Blue Ridge

DEALERSHIP BILLING:

PO BOX 1701
ROME, GA 30162

SALESMAN : STORM DEHAVEN

Date: 1/2/25

INVOICE: 579106

BILL: CITY OF SKY VALLEY
3608 HIGHWAY 246
SKY VALLEY, GA 30537

1 NEW 2025 BOBCATE60R2

MINI EXCAVATOR (DELUXE CAB, HYDRAULIC CLAMP, 24" TRENCHING BUCKET)

Customer Signature :

PH: 706-490-8069
706-430-8068
SHIP TO: SAME
FIN TERMS: CASH
- $73,680.00
SUBTOTAL $73,680.00
TRADE PAYOFF
DOC
WARRANTY
DOWN PAYMENT
TAX RATE EXEMPT
SALES TAX
Total $73,680.00




